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CHAPTER 11

TIME CONTROL DOCUMENTS

11.000  INTRODUCTION

11.001 This chapter contains time control documents. Budgets should be prepared for all engagements 
in excess of 40 hours by the in-charge at the conclusion of the preceding engagement and revised during 
the current engagement. Time budgets serve the purpose of (a) ongoing planning and time control, and 
(b) measure and control engagement profitability. Accumulated staff time should be compared to budgets 
biweekly to provide maximum opportunity for early identification of time problems and for taking 
corrective action.

11.100 USING THE BUDGETING AND TIME CONTROL DOCUMENTS

11.101 For budgets to benefit the firm and engagement personnel, they must be realistically prepared. 
Budgets must be based on engagement circumstances, not on fees.

11.102 All time spent on engagements must be charged to the client and entered on the Time 
Accumulation Sheet. At the completion of the engagement, the Time Accumulation Sheet should be 
reconciled to the Time Summary Form and the firm's billing records.

11.103 For engagements extending beyond one week of field work, the time should be accumulated and 
recorded on the Time Accumulation Sheet.

11.104 If the staff becomes aware of ways to reduce audit time in the future, the suggestions should be 
noted on the Summary of Time Savings for Next Year in section 11.202.

8/95 11.104
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COMPREHENSIVE ENGAGEMENT MANUAL 11-9

11.202

Summary of Time Savings for Next Year

Client:___________________________________________________________________________

Financial Statement Date:----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

INSTRUCTIONS:

This form should be completed by any member of the engagement team that has a time' saving suggestion, 
and reviewed by the in-charge and the engagement partner. The suggestion should indicate the engagement 
area, the procedure currently performed, and how that procedure can be improved.

SAVINGS SUGGESTIONS

Prepared by: Date:____________________

Reviewed by:

(Staff Member)

Date:
(In-charge)

Date:____________________
(Engagement Partner)

8/95 11.202
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12-3

CHAPTER 12

SUPERVISION AND REVIEW CHECKLISTS

12.000 INTRODUCTION

12.001 An often underestimated aspect of an audit engagement is supervision of engagement personnel 
and review of the audit working papers, financial statements, and reports. Included in this Chapter are 
discussions and practice aids that serve as guidance for and documentation of the various supervision and 
review requirements in a typical audit engagement:

• Review of the Tax Accrual/Provision Review Checklist and the preparation of the tax return 
by the tax specialist (referred to as the "tax partner") assigned to the engagement.

• Review of events that have occurred subsequent to the balance sheet date for any matters that 
could require adjustment to or disclosure in the financial statements.

• Review of the engagement working papers by the in-charge and engagement partner to ensure 
that the work performed complies with professional standards, including the quality control 
standards.

• Obtaining a technical review by someone not associated with the engagement on matters that 
require such review under the firm's quality control policies and procedures.

• Controlling the preparation of the financial statements, the signing of the auditor's report, and 
the release of the financial statements to the client.

12.100 AUTHORITATIVE PRONOUNCEMENTS

12.101 One of the nine elements of a system of quality control for CPA firms outlined in the AICPA's 
Statement on Quality Control Standards (SQCS) No. 1, System of Quality Control for a CPA Firm, 
effective supervision, is an essential element of quality, efficient engagements. SQCS No. 1 requires 
members of the AICPA to establish policies and procedures for the conduct and supervision of work at all 
organizational levels to provide the firm with reasonable assurance that work performed meets reasonable 
standards of quality.

12.102 AICPA Statement on Auditing Standards (SAS) No. 22, Planning and Supervision (AU 311), 
states:

The work performed by each assistant should be reviewed to determine whether it was adequately 
performed and to evaluate whether the results are consistent with the conclusions to be presented 
in the auditor's report.

8/95 12.102



12-4 COMPREHENSIVE ENGAGEMENT MANUAL
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------_------- -  

12.103 These Checklists have been designed to facilitate compliance with these standards for audits.

12.200 TAX ACCRUAL/PROVISION REVIEW

12.201 The Tax Accrual/Provision Review Checklist (section 12.204) should be completed by the tax 
partner and approved by the engagement partner after all adjustments have been completed and all notes 
to the financial statements have been drafted. The Checklist documents the review of the propriety of the 
client's income tax liabilities and assets, and related expense (or benefit), and financial statement 
disclosures.

12.202 The tax partner should ascertain, based on his or her review of the applicable working papers and 
notes to the financial statements, that the tax provision and accruals are reasonable and adequate. This 
process includes reviewing differences between financial and income tax reporting to determine that the 
distinction between, and computation of, current and deferred taxes is appropriate. Any problems should 
be discussed with the engagement partner. The tax partner should initial and date each step as it is 
completed, sign and date the Checklist in the space provided, and submit the completed Tax 
Accrual/Provision Review Checklist to the engagement partner.

12.203 The engagement partner's signature on the Checklist indicates that he or she is satisfied that the 
review has been properly performed.

12.103 8/95



COMPREHENSIVE ENGAGEMENT MANUAL 12-5
♦ --------------------------------------------------------------

12.204

Tax Accrual/Provision Review Checklist

Client:____________________________________________________________________________

Financial Statement Date:___________________________________________________________

INSTRUCTIONS:

This Checklist documents the tax partner's and engagement partner's review of the income tax provision 
and accruals, and the related financial statement disclosures. The Checklist should be completed by the 
tax partner and reviewed by the engagement partner.

Done By Date

1. Review current file working trial balances, possible journal entries, 
adjusting journal entries, eliminating journal entries, memoranda,
post-balance sheet review sections, legal letters, minutes, etc. ________ ________

2. Review current file assets schedules—such as allowance for doubtful 
accounts, inventory (including all LIFO calculations, if applicable), 
prepaid items, deferred charges, plant and equipment (depreciation
methods, recapture, etc.). ________ ________

3. Review current file liabilities and equity schedules—such as notes payable 
to officers or shareholders, accrued liabilities, deferred credits, capital
stock, retained earnings, paid-in capital, etc. ________ ________

4. Review operations files—such as revenues, costs of sales, general and
administrative expenses, selling expenses, and other income and expense. ________ ________

5. Review the calculations performed to determine the deferred tax liability 
and/or asset, including the schedule of temporary differences, net 
operating loss carrybacks and carryforwards, tax credits, the tax rate used
and, if applicable, the deferred tax asset valuation allowance. ________ ________

6. Review and initial the following working papers: All tax provision/ 
accrual working papers, tax memoranda, LIFO calculations (if 
applicable), other (please list).

7. Review tax-related notes to financial statements and other tax-related 
financial statement disclosures—such as deferred tax and LIFO 
disclosures.

8/95 12.204



12-6 COMPREHENSIVE ENGAGEMENT MANUAL

TAX ACCRUAL/PROVISION REVIEW CHECKLIST 
(Continued)

Done By Date

8. Review firm's tax return preparation checklist.

9. In my opinion, the tax provision and accruals set forth in the working 
paper schedules, the financial statements and the related disclosures are 
reasonable and adequate.

Tax Partner's Signature: _________ ________________________________ Date:______________

Engagement Partner's Signature: Date:

12.204 8/95
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♦ —--------- ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

12.300 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

12.301 Completing the audit includes performing certain procedures to identify whether any events have 
occurred since the balance-sheet date that would require adjustment to or disclosure in the financial 
statements. SAS No. 1, Section 560, Subsequent Events (AU 560.12), states:

... the independent auditor should perform other auditing procedures with respect to the period 
after the balance-sheet date for the purpose of ascertaining the occurrence of subsequent events 
that may require adjustment or disclosure essential to a fair presentation of the financial 
statements. . . . These procedures should be performed at or near the completion of the field 
work.

12.302 Procedures the auditor should perform to identify and evaluate subsequent events include:

• Read the latest available interim financial statements, compare them with the financial 
statements being reported on, and make any other comparisons considered necessary. The 
auditor should determine whether the interim statements have been prepared on the same basis 
as that used for the audited financial statements.

• Inquire of and discuss with management and owners having responsibility for financial and 
accounting matters as to:

— The existence of any substantial contingent liabilities or commitments at the balance-sheet 
date or at the date of inquiry.

— Any significant changes in long-term debt or working capital that have occurred up to the 
date of inquiry.

— The current status of items that were accounted for on the basis of tentative, preliminary, 
or inconclusive data.

— Any unusual adjustments made during the period from the balance-sheet date to the date 
of inquiry.

• Read the available minutes of meetings of shareholders, directors, and committees.

• Inquire of the client's legal counsel concerning litigation, claims, and assessments.

• Obtain a representation letter from the client that includes a statement about whether any events 
have occurred subsequent to the balance-sheet date that, in the client's opinion, would require 
adjustment to or disclosure in the financial statements.

• Make any other inquiries or perform other procedures considered necessary.

12.303 To document performance of these procedures, the Subsequent Events Review Program is included 
in section 12.304.
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12.304

Subsequent Events Review Program

Client:___________________________________  -----------------------------------------------------------

Financial Statement Date:----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

INSTRUCTIONS:

This program has been developed for use on all audit engagements. It is not a substitute for professional 
judgment.

Each step should be initialed and dated by the engagement personnel who performed the work. References 
to supporting workpapers should be placed in the "W/P Ref." column. Also, "N/A" should be placed in 
the "W/P Ref." column for any steps that are not applicable.

 W/P 
Procedure Done By Date Ref.

A. If available, review financial statements and schedules or 
general ledger and source journals for the period subsequent
to the balance-sheet date to______(last day of field work). ------------ ----------- ---------

B. Refer to latest reconciliations of major bank accounts and
inquire into any unusual items. ----------- ----------- ---------

C. Refer to latest aging of accounts receivable and compare 
with aging totals at the balance-sheet date. Inquire into
material or troublesome accounts. ----------- ----------- ---------

D. Discuss with management and investigate the following
matters for the period from the balance-sheet date to_____
(last day of field work). (Names of management should be 
recorded in working papers.)

1. Company's operations. _______  _______  ______

2. Sales and profit trends of the company as compared to
budget and trends in the industry. _______ _______  ______

3. Subsequent bookings or cancellations of sales orders. _______ _______  ______
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS REVIEW PROGRAM
(Continued)

W/P
Procedure Done By Date Ref.

4. Status of items accounted for at the balance-sheet date
based on tentative data. _______  _______  ______

5. Commitments or plans for major purchases of capital
additions or material and consideration of possible
losses due to price trends. _______  _____ ______

6. Federal, state and local taxes, changes in law, agents'
reports, deficiency assessments, etc. _______  _______  ______

7. Dividends declared or paid. _______  _______  ______

8. Litigation, claims, and assessments. ----------- ----------- ---------

9. Liabilities in dispute or being contested, such as cus­
tomers' claims, creditors' invoices or claims, war­
ranties, guarantees, state and local tax assessments. ----------- ----------- ---------

10. Losses of important customers, exceptional bad debt
losses, or pledging of receivables. ----------- ----------- ---------

11. Changes in accounting and financial policies. ----------- ----------- ---------

12. New pension plans. ----------- ----------- ---------

13. Issuance of capital stock, new borrowings or other
financing including any related dividend restrictions or
other important covenants. ----------- ----------- ---------

14. Potential losses on investment securities, carrying
amounts of equity investments, receivables, inventory,
or other assets not already considered. ----------- ----------- ---------

15. Regulatory commissions or governmental requirements
or laws that could adversely affect the entity. ----------- ----------- ---------

16. Purchase or sale of major plant and equipment;
destructions or abandonments of plant, etc. ----------- ----------- ---------

17. Status and impact of wage negotiations in progress. ----------- ----------- ---------

12.304 8/95



COMPREHENSIVE ENGAGEMENT MANUAL 12-11
♦  ---------------------------------------------------------

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS REVIEW PROGRAM
(Continued)

W/P
Procedure Done By Date Ref.

18. Effect of changes in management, development of
substitute products, etc. ----------- ----------- —-------

19. Related-party transactions. ----------- ------- __ ______

E. Read and evaluate the lawyers' responses to the letters of 
inquiry. (Letters should be requested from legal counsel so 
that replies will cover the status of litigation, etc., to a date
as close as possible to the date of the auditor's report.) _______ _______  ______

F. Read and excerpt the available minutes of meetings of the 
board of directors and committees of the board. Inquire as 
to matters discussed at meetings for which minutes are not 
available and obtain a letter from management confirming
the subject matters discussed and any decisions reached. _______  _______  ______

G. Consider adjustment of year-end financial statements or
disclosure of any items resulting from the above procedures. _______ _______  ______

H. Consider the possible effects on financial statements and 
disclosures of any matters causing substantial doubt about the 
entity's ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time. _______ _______  ______

I. Additional procedures:

Prepared by: _________________________________

Reviewed by:_________________________________

Date:__________________________________

Date:_________________________________
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12.400 ENGAGEMENT PERFORMANCE REVIEW

12.401 Effective supervision, one of the nine elements of a system of quality control for CPA firms 
outlined in the SQCS No. 1, is an essential element of quality, efficient engagements. This Statement 
requires firms to establish policies and procedures for conducting and supervising work at all organizational 
levels in order to provide reasonable assurance that the work performed meets professional standards. The 
sample quality control policies and procedures found in QC 90.16 provide the following three basic 
objectives for designing a quality control system for supervision:

• Provide procedures for planning engagements.

• Provide procedures for maintaining the firm's standards of quality for the work performed.

• Provide procedures for reviewing engagement working papers and reports.

Each firm should design quality control policies and procedures for supervision and review that fit its 
unique organizational and operating characteristics.

12.402 Proper supervision should include, among other things, the following:

• Helping assistants design procedures to resolve engagement problems early.

• Making sure assistants thoroughly understand the objectives and procedures of an assignment 
before beginning.

• Helping assistants to prioritize, organize, and control the approach to assigned work areas.

• Periodically checking on the assistant's progress.

• Keeping assistants informed of other engagement matters affecting the assigned work area.

• Rotating work assignments and offering assistants opportunities to work in new areas.

• Motivating assistants to maximum performance levels.

• Supervising paraprofessionals and temporary help.

• Appraising staff performance.

Review of Working Papers

12.403 The firm's quality control system for supervision should address procedures for reviewing working 
papers, including who performs these reviews, and how the reviews are documented. In most firms the 
in-charge performs a detailed review of the work of all assistants to determine that sufficient evidence has 
been gathered to accomplish the engagement objectives and that the engagement procedures and 
documentation are in accordance with the firm's quality control policies and procedures. The engagement 
partner generally reviews all of the working papers, and documents this review by initialling and dating 
each working paper.
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12.404 The engagement partner is responsible for reviewing work performed by the in-charge and the 
results of the in-charge's review of assistants' working papers. The objectives of his or her review are to 
determine that sufficient evidence has been gathered to accomplish engagement objectives and that the 
engagement procedures and documentation are in accordance with the firm's quality control standards. 
The engagement partner generally reviews all of the working papers, and documents this review by 
initialing and dating each working paper. The engagement partner's review should determine that all firm 
quality control standards have been met.

12.405 The In-charge Review. The in-charge's detailed review of assistant's work should be performed 
as frequently as possible, as each audit area is completed. Immediate feedback is often difficult to give 
under the time constraints of an audit, but is essential to providing effective on-the-job training. The in­
charge's review procedures should include at least the following:

• Review applicable section of last year's working papers.

• Review the applicable section of the work program.

• Compare current and prior period trial balance accounts related to the work area and note 
variations.

• Briefly review the content of the working papers.

• Read the conclusions.

• Review the working papers in detail for:

— Mathematical accuracy.

— Accomplishment of the purposes of the documentation, i.e., engagement objectives.

— Proper performance of procedures.

— Reasonableness of judgments.

— Identification and follow-up of exceptions.

— Resolution of problems and questions.

— Projection of sample results to the population.

— Determine that all work program procedures have been completed correctly.

12.406 The Engagement Manager Review. Some firms use an engagement manager to review the work 
of engagement personnel as frequently as practical. Acceptable reasons for reviewing the engagement only 
after its final completion are rare. The engagement manager review should be conducted in the field 
whenever possible. Field reviews allow problem resolution while staff is working on the engagement, 
prevent typical office interruption, enable the engagement manager to schedule review time, and allow the 
engagement manager to be seen by client personnel.
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12.407 The Engagement Partner Review. The engagement partner's review may be conducted in 
greater or lesser detail depending on the complexity and size of the engagement and on the experience of 
engagement personnel. The engagement partner's review also should be conducted in the field whenever 
possible. Except for periodic discussions with engagement personnel, the engagement partner's review 
ordinarily will occur during the final stages of the engagement.

Using the Engagement Performance Review Checklist

12.408 Completion of the Engagement Performance Review Checklist documents that the in-charge and 
engagement partner are satisfied that engagement personnel have been properly supervised and the work 
performed has been properly reviewed.

12.409 The Engagement Performance Review Checklist should be completed to document the review of 
engagements. Foregoing the technical review (section 12.500) must be approved by the firm or office 
accounting and auditing partner. Such approval must be documented in a memo to the engagement file. 
Any problems discovered in the technical review should be discussed with the engagement partner. 
Resolution of the problems should be documented in separate memoranda.

12.410 The Checklist should be completed by the in-charge and reviewed by the engagement partner upon 
completion of the auditing procedures. A sample Engagement Performance Review Checklist is presented 
in section 12.411.

12.407 8/95



COMPREHENSIVE ENGAGEMENT MANUAL 12-15

12.411

Engagement Performance Review Checklist

Client:

Financial Statement Date:

INSTRUCTIONS:

This checklist documents the in-charge and engagement partner review responsibilities, as required by the 
firm's quality control policies and procedures.

Part I of the checklist should be completed by the in-charge at the completion of the engagement. Part II 
should be completed by the engagement partner.

Part I Yes No

See 
Additional 
Comments

Administrative Considerations

1. Have all required engagement programs, forms, and checklists 
been completed, signed, and dated?

2. Have all working papers been reviewed for—

a. Initials and dates of preparation and review?

b. Proper format, that is, headings, tickmark explanations, 
indexing, and cross-referencing?

c. Footing and testing of schedules prepared by the client?

d. Posting of adjustments and cross-referencing to the trial 
balance?

e. Agreeing beginning balances to prior year's working 
papers?

3. Do financial statements agree with the trial balance?

4. Has the Time Summary Form been completed, and significant 
variances between budget and actual been explained?
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ENGAGEMENT PERFORMANCE REVIEW CHECKLIST
(Continued)

See 
Additional

Yes No Comments

5. Have the following letters been obtained and reviewed for 
proper dating and propriety?

a. Client representation letter (dated as of the auditor's or
accountant's report date). ______ ______ _________

b. Lawyers' letters (dated within two to three weeks of the
auditor's report date). ______ ______ _________

Other Considerations

1. Have you reviewed all work done by assistants and cleared all
review points? ______ ______ _________

2. Does the work performed accomplish the objectives of the
engagement? ---------- ---------- --------------

3. Do the conclusions in the working papers support the type of
report issued? ---------- ---------- --------------

4. Are you satisfied there are no material errors, and no irregu­
larities or illegal acts unless they are clearly inconsequential? ___  ______ _________

5. Has the engagement been completed in accordance with firm
policy and authoritative standards? ---------- ---------- --------------

6. Have all problems been adequately resolved? ---------- ---------- --------------

7. If a situation has been encountered that impairs the firm's 
independence, has a disclaimer of opinion been issued for 
public companies or a step-down to a compilation with lack of
independence noted for nonpublic companies? ---------- ---------- --------------

8. Were any transactions or events encountered that, according
to the firm's policy, require consultation? ---------- ---------- --------------

• If yes, was consultation obtained and properly docu­
mented? ---------- ---------- --------------

• If applicable, were the resolutions of differences of opinion
among firm personnel properly documented? ______ ______ _________
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ENGAGEMENT PERFORMANCE REVIEW CHECKLIST
(Continued)

See
Additional

Yes No Comments

9. Has the Subsequent Events Review Program been completed? ______ ______ _________

10. Have all communications been made as required by SAS Nos.
53, 54, and 60 for:

a. Internal control structure related matters? ______ ______ _________

b. Irregularities? ______ ______ _________

c. Illegal acts? ______ ______ _________

11. If the entity has an audit committee or other formally
designated group responsible for oversight of the financial
reporting process, have the other matters required by SAS No.
61 been communicated? ______ ______ _________

12. Additional comments:

Prepared by:_________________________________________Date:____________________________
(In-charge)

Reviewed by :________________________________________ Date:____________________________
(Engagement Partner)
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ENGAGEMENT PERFORMANCE REVIEW CHECKLIST 
(Continued)

Part II (To be completed by engagement partner) Initials

1. I have reviewed the engagement working papers, work programs, checklists, etc. to 
the extent required by firm policy.

2. I have reviewed the financial statements for appropriate form and conformity with 
professional standards.

3. I have reviewed the independent auditor's (accountant's) report for conformity with 
professional standards, and have determined that the conclusions reached in the 
working papers support our report.

4. I authorize issuance of the financial statements and the report.

Prepared by:------------------------------------------------------------ Date:-------------------------------------------
(Engagement Partner)
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12.500 THE TECHNICAL REVIEW

12.501 As part of their quality control systems for the supervision element, many firms require 
preissuance, technical reviews of reports and related financial statements, and often the engagement 
working papers, by persons not involved with the engagement. Such reviews are performed to give the 
firm assurance that the auditor's report, related financial statements and the engagement working papers 
comply with professional standards and the firm's quality control system.

12.502 As with all quality control policies and procedures, each firm should develop policies and 
procedures for technical reviews that are appropriate for its practice. For example, many firms require 
these technical reviews only for certain types of engagements, such as audits of clients who operate in high- 
risk industries, and special reporting situations, such as modified auditor's reports. The authors 
recommend that firms carefully identify the situations in which an independent technical review is required 
and identify the firm personnel who have the qualifications and authority to perform such reviews.

12.503 Included in section 12.504 is a Technical Review Checklist that can be used to document technical 
reviews of reports, financial statements and, if necessary, the engagement working papers. Requirements 
for completion of this Checklist should interface with each firm's quality control policies and procedures 
for technical reviews.
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12.504

Technical Review Checklist

Client:-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Financial Statement Date:__ _     ...................................................... ..... —

Technical Reviewer:_________________________________  Date:____________________________

INSTRUCTIONS:

This Checklist should be completed by the technical reviewer on those engagements in which a technical 
review is required by the firm’s quality control policies and procedures.

Initials

1. Review the financial statements for appropriate form and content. Consider the 
appropriateness of:
a. Titles. --------------
b. Captions. ---------------
c. Classifications within captions. _________
d. Descriptions. --------------
e. Reference to auditor's (accountant's) report and financial statement notes. _________

2. Compare the Financial Statements and Notes Checklists to the notes to the
financial statements. Consider whether the notes are complete and worded 
appropriately. --------------

3. Review the financial statements for any obvious departures from GAAP or
OCBOA. _________

4. Read the auditor's (accountant's) report for appropriateness and conformity with
professional standards. --------------

5. If applicable, review the engagement checklists:
a. To determine that they support the conclusions reached in the engagement. _________
b. For potential problems. _________

6. Describe any problems noted and the way they were resolved. _________
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12.600 USING THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT CONTROL FORM

12.601 The Financial Statement Control Form is included in section 12.604. This form should accompany 
drafts of financial statements, notes, and reports for all engagements. Final disposition of the Financial 
Statement Control Form is the responsibility of the engagement partner. In completing the Financial 
Statement Control Form, the engagement partner has the responsibility for:

• Making sure all processing levels are completed and signed.

• Completing the report release questions.

• Releasing the report.

12.602 Uneven work loads, engagement completion delays and other problems will occasionally cause 
report processing schedules to be altered. The in-charge has primary responsibility for controlling the 
processing function and should communicate with the engagement partner whenever unexpected delays 
occur. The engagement partner should communicate with the client to apprise them of any processing 
difficulties. If client deadlines cannot be altered, the engagement partner should request the firm or office 
managing partner to allow prioritizing of the report's processing.

Signing the Report

12.603 As indicated in the Financial Statement Control Form, the engagement partner is the primary 
authorized signer of an engagement report. Signing responsibilities can be delegated to other partners, but 
in no event should a staff person sign the firm name to an engagement report.
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12.604

Financial Statement Control Form

Client:

Financial Statement Date:

INSTRUCTIONS:

This Form should be prepared by the in-charge to accompany the draft of the financial statements and 
report. Each step should be initialled and dated as it is completed, or checked "N/A." Step 8 must be 
initialled and dated by the engagement partner in order to release the financial statements and report.

SERVICE PERFORMED:

AUDIT

REVIEW

COMPILATION

OTHER (describe):

1.

2.

3.

Submit financial statements and report to typing. 

Proofread the financial statements and report. 

Resubmit the financial statements and report for 
corrections.

4. Submit to technical or concurring reviewer, if applicable.

5. Resubmit the financial statements and report for 
corrections.

6. Foot and crossfoot all pages.

Submit to engagement partner for final review. 

Release the financial statements and report.

Number of Copies: Bound: ______ Unbound:

Other:___________________________________

7.

8.

Performed By 
Name Date N/A

Word Processing Filename: --------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
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12.700 MANAGEMENT MEETING

12.701 The Management Meeting Checklist is designed to help engagement personnel identify reportable 
conditions and operational needs on audits. The Checklist is a source of meaningful suggestions that can 
be presented to clients that can become the source of additional services for a firm. The Checklist is 
oriented towards making suggestions informally at a client meeting as opposed to the traditional formal 
presentation of a letter. It may, however, also be used to generate suggestions for presentation in a written 
letter.

12.702 Continued good client service requires extending work beyond the professional standards for the 
level of service performed. Suggestions for improving the client's accounting and operational methods can 
make significant contributions to helping the client accomplish its operational objectives. Such suggestions 
can also help generate additional services. The Management Meeting Checklist will help organize and 
collect information to satisfy professional standards and benefit the client and the firm.

12.703 The Checklist should be completed by the in-charge at the conclusion of an engagement and 
reviewed by the engagement partner prior to presenting suggestions at a meeting with client management 
personnel. The engagement partner should prepare a memorandum for the file documenting the results of 
the management meeting.
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12.704

Management Meeting Checklist

Client:___________________________________________________________________________

Financial Statement Date:----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

INSTRUCTIONS:

This Checklist should be completed by the in-charge and reviewed by the engagement partner. The 
"Reference" column should be used for comments or cross-referencing to applicable working papers. The 
"Meeting" column should be checked for items that should be considered for the current management 
meeting. The possible suggestions should be explained on a supporting working paper and considered for 
inclusion in the reportable conditions letter. If an item is not applicable, enter N/A in the "Yes" column.

Yes No MEETING REFERENCE

I. Organization:

A. Does the company's legal form of organization
suit the business? ___  ___ __________________________

B. Is the company's fiscal year its natural business
year? ___  ___ __________________________

C. Is management spread among several indi­
viduals? ___  ___ ___________________________

D. Are lines of authority and supervision clear? ___  ___ ___________________________

E. Are departments, or line managers, responsible 
for planning, controlling, and reporting results of
operations? ___  ___  __________ ______________

F. Do employees understand their responsibilities? ___  ___ ___________________________

G. Are all positions necessary? ___  ___  __________ ______________

H. Have company policies been documented? ____ ___  __________ ______________

I. Are company policies appropriate? ___  ___  __________ ______________
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MANAGEMENT MEETING CHECKLIST
(Continued)

Yes No MEETING REFERENCE

J. Are management styles and philosophies
effective? ___  ___  __________ ______________

II. Planning and Controlling Operations:

A. Are formal operations forecasts and budgets pre­
pared for the next year?

B. Are long-range forecasts also made?

C. Are the forecasting and budgeting effective?

D. Are budgets broken down by department or 
manager?

E. Are budgets used effectively to control 
operations?

F. Are monthly or quarterly budget variances 
analyzed, and is corrective action taken?

G. Does management receive monthly or quarterly 
reports of results compared to budgets?

H. Are monthly or quarterly reports broken down 
by department or manager?

I. Are reports prepared in a timely manner?

J. Are reports designed to facilitate use by manage­
ment?

K. Are other reports such as sales analysis by 
territory, break-even analysis, or more detailed 
variance analysis in use?

L. Have the results of our analytical procedures 
been communicated to management?

M. Is there an effective production control, 
scheduling, and reporting system being used?
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MANAGEMENT MEETING CHECKLIST
(Continued)

Yes No MEETING REFERENCE

N. Are current bills of materials and work standards
used and monitored? -----  ----- ---------------------------------------

O. Are space utilization and materials handling
efficient? -----  ----- ---------------------------------------

P. Are the company's quality control procedures
adequate? ___  ___ __________________________

Q. Does management stay abreast of new tech­
nology, products, by-products, and service? ___  __________________________

III. Accounting Records, Systems, and Financial Reports:

A. Does the client have a formalized descriptive
chart of accounts? __   ___  _________________________

B. Are the categories in the chart of accounts
meaningful for management purposes? ___  ___  __________ _____________

C. Does the client have a standard entry journal for 
monthly recurring entries (a journal whereby the 
account titles, etc., are not repeated each
month)? ___  ___  __________ ______________

D. If the general ledger has a separate page or card 
for each account, could related accounts be 
grouped on one page by use of columns, thereby
reducing posting references, dates, etc.? ___  ___ __________________________

E. Is the general ledger (i.e., chart of accounts)
arranged for ease in preparing monthly state­
ments? ___  ___  __________ _____________

F. Are the analyses and reclassifications for 
monthly reports, and for other reports, the 
minimum number possible (consider better
account classification)? ___  ___  __________ _____________

G. Does the client get adequate monthly financial
statements? ___  ___  __________ _____________
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MANAGEMENT MEETING CHECKLIST
(Continued)

Yes No MEETING REFERENCE

H. Does management understand the monthly state­
ments? ___  ___ ___________________________

I. Are the statements submitted to management in
a reasonable time? ___  ___ ___________________________

J. Does the client's bookkeeper or accountant have
the capabilities of preparing financial statements? ___  ___  __________ ______________

K. Are monthly financial statements prepared by the
bookkeeper (is bookkeeper trainable)? ___  ___ ___________________________

L. Do monthly reports contain all ratios, statistics, 
and other information that would be usefill to
management? ___  ___ ___________________________

M. Are daily or weekly "flash reports" concerning
sales or other important operating data in use? ___  ___ ___________________________

N. Are the client's statements classified to facilitate
industry comparison? ___  ___ ___________________________

O. Does the company use an appropriate accounting
system? -----  ----- -----------------------------------------

P. Is the cost accounting system tied into the
general ledger? ___  ___  __________ ______________

Q. Are cost accounting standards and rates reviewed
and revised periodically? -----  ----- -----------------------------------------

R. Does management receive monthly break-even, 
profit-volume, and variance data from the
system? -----  -----  --------------- ----------------------

S. Is data processing equipment being used where
feasible? -----  -----  --------------- ----------------------

IV. Personnel:

A. Are there formal hiring and firing policies?
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MANAGEMENT MEETING CHECKLIST
(Continued)

Yes No MEETING REFERENCE

B. Are hirings and firings documented in
accordance with the policies? -----  ----- ---------------------------------------

C. Are personnel policies regarding holidays,
vacation, and fringe benefits documented and
communicated to employees? ___  ___  __________ _____________

D. Are employee orientation and training programs
adequate? -----  ----- ---------------------------------------

E. Are there regular, formal employee performance
evaluations? ___  ___  __________ _____________

F. Are wage and salary schedules competitive and
related to job descriptions? ___  ___ __________________________

G. Are wages and salaries competitive? ___  ___  __________ _____________

H. Are adequate incentive systems in use? -----  ----- ---------------------------------------

I. Is overtime controlled by management? -----  ----- ---------------------------------------

J. Is there an employee suggestion system? -----  ----- ---------------------------------------

K. Are personnel responsibilities centralized? -----  ----- ---------------------------------------

L. Are there pension and profit-sharing plans? -----  -----  --------------- --------------------

V. Administration:

A. Is there a policies and procedures manual? ___  ___  __________ _____________

B. Are office records and record-keeping
procedures adequate? -----  -----  --------------- --------------------

C. Are all records, forms, or form copies
necessary? -----  ----- ---------------------------------------

D. Do record retention policies need review or
revision? -----  ----- ---------------------------------------
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MANAGEMENT MEETING CHECKLIST

(Continued)

Yes No MEETING REFERENCE

E. Are forms and records designed for overall
efficiency? ___  ___  __________ ______________

F. Is the physical control over records adequate? ___  ___  __________ ______________

G. Is the administrative function appropriately
staffed considering the size of the company? ___  ___ __________________________

H. Is the office layout and environment designed for
maximum efficiency? ___  ___  __________ ______________

I. Is the filing system adequate? ___  ___ __________________________

J. Has management been made aware of internal 
control structure weaknesses discovered during 
our engagement? (Summarize on Internal
Control Reportable Conditions Report.) ___  ___ __________________________

VI. Cash Management:

A. Does management get a daily cash balance
report? -----  -----  --------------- ---------------------

B. Are formal cash projections prepared and
coordinated with forecasts and budgets? ___  ___ __________________________

C. Is the client receiving maximum cash discounts? ___  ___ __________________________

D. Is cash managed effectively by taking cash 
discounts, by reducing bank loans, or by
utilizing the cash for investments? ___  ___  __________ ______________

E. Are all bank accounts necessary? ------ ------ --------- -------- -----------------------

F. Are receipts deposited promptly? -----  -----  --------------- ---------------------

G. Has the client borrowed money at the best
possible rate? -----  -----  --------------- ---------------------

H. Are the client's methods of financing the most
economical in the circumstances? ___  ___  __________ ______________
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MANAGEMENT MEETING CHECKLIST
(Continued)

Yes No MEETING REFERENCE

VII. Sales and Accounts Receivable:

A. Is appropriate product profitability and market
analysis data available to, and used by, manage­
ment? ___  ___  __________ ______________

B. Are product pricing decisions based on sound
information and judgments? ___  ___ ___________________________

C. Are credit and collection policies approved and
controlled by management? ___  ___ ___________________________

D. Are credit and collection policies adequate? ___  ___  __________ ______________

E. Are salesmen given appropriate sales goals,
incentive, and collection responsibilities? ___  ___  __________ ______________

F. Is the sales program, i.e., advertising, literature,
catalogs, displays, customer incentives, customer
contracts, effective? ___  ___  __________ ______________

G. Does the accounting system provide sales data by
product, territory, or salesman? ___  ___  __________ ______________

H. Are customers sent timely, monthly statements? ___  ___  __________ ______________

I. Would an invoice billing system be more ef­
fective than monthly statements? ___  ___  __________ ______________

J. Does management receive monthly, aged trial
balances of accounts? ___  ___  __________ ______________

K. Is the accounts receivable record-keeping system
and equipment efficient? ___  ___ ___________________________

VIII. Purchasing and Inventories:

A. Is management of inventory quantities adequate,
i.e., are optimum quantities maintained? ___  ___  __________ ______________

■ B. Are physical controls of inventory adequate? ___  ___  __________ __ ;____________
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MANAGEMENT MEETING CHECKLIST
(Continued)

Yes No MEETING REFERENCE

C. Is a perpetual inventory system in use? ___  ___  __________ ______________

D. Does the perpetual inventory tie to the general
ledger and is it effective? ___  ___  __________ ______________

E. Are inventory space and handling equipment
adequate? ___  ___  __________ ______________

F. Is slow-moving or obsolete inventory identified
and controlled? ___  ___  _________________________

G. Are the costs of services and supplies evaluated
regularly and approved by management? ___  ___  __________ ______________

H. Are formal purchasing policies in use? ___  ___  __________ ______________

I. Is purchasing responsibility centralized? ___  ___  __________ ______________

J. Are purchase requisitions and purchase orders
used effectively? ___  ___  __________ ______________

IX. Property and Equipment:

A. Are capital expenditures budgeted and are pur­
chase alternatives properly evaluated? ___  ___  __________ ______________

B. Are physical controls over fixed assets adequate? ___  ___  __________ ______________

C. Are fixed assets records adequate? ___  ___  __________ ______________

D. Is a periodic fixed assets inventory taken? ___  ___  __________ ______________

E. Is equipment kept in good repair through regular
maintenance? ___  ___  __________ ______________

F. Is all equipment effectively utilized? ___  ___  __________ _____________

G. Is the general condition of fixed assets good? ___  ___  __________ _____________

H. Are depreciation and capitalization policies
reasonable? ___  ___  __________ _____________
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MANAGEMENT MEETING CHECKLIST
(Continued)

Yes No MEETING REFERENCE

I. Are facilities and equipment adequate to meet 
production demands? ___  ___    ______________

X. Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities:

A. Is trade credit being used as a resource of
financing, if appropriate? ___  ___  __________ ___________ 

B. Is long-term financing appropriate (should
refinancing be considered)? ___  ___  __________ ______________

C. Are payroll, payroll tax, and employees'
earnings records adequate and efficiently
prepared? ___  ___  ________ — ----------------------

D. Is the accounts payable record-keeping system
adequate and efficient? ___  ___ ___________________________

XL Insurance:

A. Does the company use a good insurance man­
ager? ___  ___ ___________________________

B. Is an annual review of insurance coverage made
and is the coverage adequate? ___  ___ ___________________________

C. Does insurance coverage include product or
service liability and business interruption
insurance? ___  ___  __________ ______________

D. Is key-person life insurance coverage carried? ___  ___  __________ ______________

XII. General:

A. Has outside equity capital through a public
offering been considered? ___  ___  __________ ______________

B. Have other financing alternatives been
considered? ___  ___  __________ ______________
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MANAGEMENT MEETING CHECKLIST 
(Continued)

Yes No MEETING REFERENCE

C. Does management consider expansion through
acquisition or merger? ___  ___  __________ _____________

D. Does the company consider leasing or a sale and
lease-back arrangement as a major source of
financing? ___  ___ __________________________

E. Does the company utilize good legal counsel? ___  ___ __________________________

F. Is management aware of federal and state safety
requirements? -----  -----  --------------- --------------------

G. Has the business continuity been planned? -----  ----- ---------------------------------------

(Engagement Partner)

Prepared by: ________________________________________ Date:________________________
(In-charge)

Reviewed by: __________________________  Date:________________________
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CHAPTER 13

CORRESPONDENCE LIST

13.000 CORRESPONDENCE INSTRUCTIONS

13.001 The accompanying illustrative confirmations and request letters should be used as guides and 
modified for specific engagement circumstances. They should, wherever possible, be typed on the client's 
letterhead. All confirmations should be mailed by the accounting firm. All replies should be returned 
directly to the firm in enclosed, prestamped, preaddressed envelopes. Copies of all correspondence should 
be retained for future reference or for mailing second requests. The standard working papers should 
include a correspondence control schedule.
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13.002 REQUEST FOR BANK CUTOFF STATEMENT
[Client's Letterhead]

[Date]

In connection with an audit of the financial statements of___________________[name of client] as of
______ [balance-sheet date] and for the___________ [period] then ended, we request that you send the 
following information directly to our auditors_____________________________ [name and address of
auditors] as of the close of business on_______[balance-sheet date]:

1. The information requested on the enclosed standard form(s) to confirm account balance information 
with your financial institution.

2. For the account numbers listed below, statement(s) of our account(s) and the related paid checks for
the period from________ [balance-sheet date] to_________[two weeks subsequent to the balance-
sheet date] inclusive.

Account Number Account Name

Very truly yours,

By: [Client's Authorized Signature]

Notes to User:

(1) This letter should be addressed to a financial institution official who is responsible for the financial 
institution's relationship with the client or is knowledgeable about the transactions or arrangements. 
Some financial institutions centralize this function by assigning responsibility for responding to 
confirmation requests to a separate function. Independent auditors should ascertain the appropriate 
recipient.
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(2) The request should be sent at least ten days prior to the balance-sheet date so the bank will be able 
to provide the information requested and to render the cutoff statements as requested. If the request 
does not reach the bank before the cutoff date, the cutoff statement will include transactions after that 
date.

(3) The letter may also include requests for:

• Confirmation of all securities or other items held for the client's account as of the closing date for 
collection or safekeeping, or as agent or trustee (a listing should be provided including titles and 
account numbers).

• Confirmation of the list of authorized signers for the above accounts. (This may have been 
previously requested at a preliminary date in connection with the assessment of control risk.)
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13.003 STANDARD FORM TO CONFIRM ACCOUNT
BALANCE INFORMATION WITH FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

CUSTOMER NAME

We have provided to our accountants the following Information as of

Financial 
institution's 
Name and 

Address

the close of business on_________________________________, 19_____ .
regarding our deposit and loan balances. Please confirm the accuracy 
of the Information, noting any exceptions to the information provided. 
If the balances have been left blank, please complete this form by 
furnishing the balance in the appropriate space below.* Although we 
do not request nor expect you to conduct a comprehensive, detailed 
search of your records. If during the process of completing this con­
firmatlon additional information about other deposit and loan accounts 
we may have with you comes to your attention, please indude such 
information below. Please use the enclosed envelope to return the 
form directly to our accountants.

Please return this form directly to our accountants:

* Ordinarily, balances are intentionally left blank if they are not
available at the time the form is prepared. [ ]

Approved 1990 by American Bankers Association, American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, ano Bank Administration 0451 5951
Institute. Additional forms available from: AICPA- Order Department, P.O. Box 1003, NY, NY 10108-1003

1. At the close of business on the date listed above, our records indicated the following deposit balance(s):

ACCOUNT NAME ACCOUNT NO. INTEREST RATE BALANCE*

2. We were directly liable to the financial institution for loans at the close of business on the date listed above as follows:

ACCOUNT NO./ 
DESCRIPTION BALANCE* DATE DUE INTEREST RATE

DATE THROUGH WHICH 
INTEREST IS PAID DESCRIPTION OF COLLATERAL

(Customer’s Authorized Signature) (Date)

The information presented above by the customer is in agreement with our records. Although we have not conducted a 
comprehensive, detailed search of our records, no other deposit or loan accounts have come to our attention except as noted below.

(Financial Institution Authorized Signature) ---------------------------
(Date)

(Title)

EXCEPTIONS AND/OR COMMENTS

13.003
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13.004 CONFIRMATION OF MONEY MARKET FUND
[Client's Letterhead]

[Date]

Our auditors,____________________________ [name and address of auditors] are conducting an audit
of our financial statements. Accordingly, please confirm directly to our auditors the balance of our money 
market fund account(s) as of_______ [date].

Please indicate in the space provided below the account number(s) and balance(s) of our account(s) per 
your records.

Please sign and date your reply and return it directly to the auditors. A stamped, self-addressed envelope 
is enclosed for your convenience.

Very truly yours,

[Client's Authorized Signature]

Account No. Balance

Date:________________  Signed:________________________________________________________
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13.005 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE-POSITIVE REQUEST
[Client's Letterhead]

[Date]

In connection with the audit of our financial statements, please confirm directly to our auditors 
____________________________ [name and address of auditors] the amount of your indebtedness to us 
which according to our records as of_______[date] amounted to $_______ .

If the amount shown is in agreement with your records, please check "A" below.

If the amount is not in agreement with your records, please check and complete "B" below.

After checking the appropriate response, please sign and date your reply and mail it directly to our auditors 
in the enclosed envelope. Do not send any payments to our auditors.

Very truly yours,

[Client's Authorized Signature]

A_____________ The balance above agrees with my records.

B_____________ My records show a balance of $_______ .

The difference may be due to the following:

Signed by:

Date:
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13.006 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE-NEGATIVE REQUEST

[May Be a Sticker or Stamp Used on Client's Statements to Customers]

PLEASE CHECK THIS STATEMENT

If this statement is not correct please write promptly (using the enclosed envelope), giving 
details of any differences, directly to our auditors,

(Name of auditors)_____________
(Address of auditors)___________

who are now conducting an audit of our financial statements.

If you do not write to our auditors, they will consider this statement to be correct.

Remittances should NOT be sent to the auditors.

Notes to User:

• A negative confirmation may also be requested in letter form using similar wording.

• The auditor should consider sending confirmation requests at the time of the client's regular monthly 
billings. Coordination of confirmation procedures with the client's routine preparation and mailing of 
statements may offer efficiency to both the auditor and client.

• Negative confirmation requests may be used as a substantive procedure to reduce audit risk only when 
three conditions are met: (1) the combined assessed level of inherent and control risk is low, (2) a large 
number of small balances is involved, and (3) the auditor has no reason to believe that the recipients of 
the requests are unlikely to give them consideration.
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13.007 NOTES RECEIVABLE CONFIRMATION — POSITIVE REQUEST 

[Client's Letterhead]

[Date]

Our auditors_____________________________ [name and address of auditors] are performing an audit
of our financial statements. Accordingly, please confirm directly to our auditors the amount of your 
indebtedness due us as of_______[date], which our records show as follows:

Type of indebtedness _________________________________________________
Initial date of indebtedness __________________________________________________
Original amount of indebtedness _________________________________________________
Unpaid principal _________________________________________________
Date due _________________________________________________
Interest rate _________________________________________________
Interest paid to _________________________________________________
Periodic payments required _________________________________________________
Description of collateral _________________________________________________

If the above information is in agreement with your records, please so indicate by signing in the place 
provided below and return the copy of this letter directly to our auditors in the enclosed envelope.

If the above is not in agreement with your records, please so note in the space provided the particulars 
shown in your records and any information which may help reconcile the difference from our records. 
Payments should not be sent to the auditors.

Very truly yours,

[Client's Authorized Signature]

The above information is correct as of___________[date] with the following exceptions (if any):

Date: __________________________ Signed:___________________________________________
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13.008 INVENTORIES HELD BY WAREHOUSES OR OTHERS
WHEN LISTING IS PROVIDED BY CLIENT

[Client's Letterhead]

[Date]

Our auditors_____________________________ [name and address of auditors] are conducting an audit
of our financial statements. Accordingly, please confirm directly to our auditors the following information 
about the merchandise held by you for our account as of_______[date]:

1. The correctness of the quantities shown on the enclosed listing of such merchandise prepared from
our records (a second copy is enclosed for your files). If the enclosed listing differs from the 
quantities you held for us as of_______ [date], please include details of the specific differences in
your response to our auditors.

2. Your statement on how you determined the correctness of the quantities you are confirming; please 
specify whether determined by physical count, weight or measure, or whether the quantities are from 
your records.

3. A list of negotiable or nonnegotiable warehouse receipts issued, if any, and whether or not such 
receipts have, to your knowledge, been assigned or pledged.

4. Statement of any known liens against these goods.

5. Amount of any unpaid charges as of_______ [date].

Please mail your reply directly to_____________________________ [name and address of auditors]. A
stamped, addressed envelope is enclosed for your convenience.

Very truly yours,

[Client's Authorized Signature]
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13.009 INVENTORIES HELD BY WAREHOUSES OR OTHERS 
WHEN LISTING IS NOT PROVIDED BY CLIENT 

[Client's Letterhead]

[Date]

Our auditors_____________________________ [name and address of auditors] are conducting an audit
of our financial statements. Accordingly, please send directly to our auditors the following information 
about merchandise held in your custody for our account at_______[date]:

1. Quantities on hand; for each lot please indicate the following:

(a) Lot number (list each lot separately)

(b) Date received

(c) Kind of merchandise

(d) Unit of measure or package

(1) Number of units

(2) Kind of units (box, can, crate, quart, pound, dozen, etc.)

2. A statement about how you determined the above requested quantities; specify whether they were 
determined by physical count, weight or measure, or if they represent your book record.

3. A list of negotiable or nonnegotiable warehouse receipts issued, if any, and whether or not such receipts 
have, to your knowledge, been assigned or pledged.

4. Statement of any known liens against this merchandise.

5. Amount of unpaid charges, if any, as of (insert date).

Please mail your reply directly to the auditors. A stamped, addressed envelope is enclosed for your 
convenience.

Very truly yours,

[Client's Authorized Signature]
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13.010 SECURITIES HELD BY BROKERS 
[Client's Letterhead]

[Date]

In connection with the audit of our financial statements, please send directly to our auditors 
____________________________ [name and address of auditors], a statement of our account(s) with you 
as of_______[date], indicating the following information:

1. Securities held by you for our account.
2. Securities out for transfer to our name.
3. Any amounts payable to or due from us.

Please mail your reply directly to the auditors. A stamped, addressed envelope is enclosed for your 
convenience.

Very truly yours,

[Client's Authorized Signature]

Notes to User:

(1) The request should be sent so it reaches the broker sufficiently in advance of the listing date for the 
broker to respond in a practical manner.

(2) It may be helpful to include the account number(s) used by the broker for the client's account(s).
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13.011 STANDARD CONFIRMATION INQUIRY 
FOR LIFE INSURANCE POLICIES

RETURN 
TO.

standard confirmation inquiry

Date:

Developed by American Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants.
Life Office Management Association and 
Million Dollar Round Table

Your completion of the following report will be sincerely 
appreciated. IF THE ANSWER TO ANY ITEM IS “NONE.” 
PLEASE SO STATE. Use the enclosed envelope to return 
the original directly to our accountant (see name to left).

J

Yours truly,

REPORT 
FROM 
INSURANCE 
COMPANY

(Name of owner as shown on policy contract)

By
Authorized Signature

[

(Date)
Information requested as of:

1 J
Policy #1 Policy #2 Policy #3

Additional forms available from (A) Policy Number
B lnsured-Name(s)

nyc. ny 10108-0946 © Beneficiaries as Shown on Policies
(If Verification Requested in Item 11)

1 Face Amount of Basic Policy

2 Values Shown as of (Insert Date If Other Than Date Requested)

3 Premiums, Including Prepaid Premiums, Are Paid to (Insert Date)

4 Policy Surrender Value (Excluding Dividends, Additions & 
Indebtedness Adjustments)

5 Surrender Value of All Dividend Credits, Including 
  Accumulations & Additions

6 Termination Dividend Currently Available on Surrender

7 Other Surrender

Values Available 

to Policy
Owner

a Prepaid Premium Value

b. Premium Deposit Funds

c. Other

8 Outstanding Policy Loans, Excluding Accrued Interest

9 If Any Policy 

Loans Exist, 

Complete 
Either "a” or "b"

a Interest Accrued on Loans

b1. Loan Interest Is Paid to (Enter Date)

b2. Interest Rate is (Enter Rate)

NOTE: PLEASE ANSWER ANY ITEM(s) 10-12 INDICATED BY A(  ).

□ 10 Is There an Assignee of Record? (Enter Yes or No)

  11 Is Beneficiary of Record as Shown In Item© Above? 
(Enter Yes or No*)

* * *
Is the Name of Policy Owner (Subject to Any Assignment) as Shown on Top of Form □ Yes □ No 

  12 If No, Enter Name of Policy Owner of Record

Yours truly, (Insurance Company)
* If Answer to Item 11 is "No.” Please Give Name of Beneficiary or 

Date of Last Beneficiary Change:

ORIGINAL
To be mailed to accountant bate Authorized Signature - Title
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13.012 SAFE DEPOSIT BOX ACCESS CONFIRMATION 
[Client's Letterhead]

[Date]

Our auditors,____________________________ [name and address of auditors], are conducting an audit
of our financial statements. Accordingly, please confirm there has been no access to our safe deposit box 
number___ between____and____ o'clock.

Please indicate in the space below if the above is in agreement with your records. If it is not, please 
furnish the auditors any details concerning access to our safe deposit box during the period indicated.

After signing and dating your reply, please mail it directly to our auditors in the enclosed envelope. 

Very truly yours, 

[Client's Authorized Signature]

According to our records, there has been no access to the above described safe deposit box during the 
period specified, except as follows: ___________________________________________________  ------

Signed: Date:________________________
[Name and Title]
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13.013 NOTES PAYABLE OR LONG-TERM DEBT CONFIRMATION
[Client’s Letterhead]

[Date]

Our auditors_____________________________ [name and address of auditors] are conducting an audit
of our financial statements.

Accordingly, please confirm directly to them the following information relating to our note(s) payable to 
you, as of_______ [date]:

Date of Note ______________
Original Amount ______________
Unpaid Principal ______________

Balance ______________
Periodic payments required _____________
Payment periods ______________

Maturity Date ______________
Interest Rate ______________
Date to which interest has been paid ______________
Amount and description of collateral __________________________________________________
Description of terms, e.g., demand provisions, prepayment penalties, etc. ___________________
Any other direct or contingent liabilities to you _________________________________________

If the above information is in agreement with your records, please so indicate by signing in the place 
provided below and return the copy of this letter directly to our auditors in the enclosed envelope.

If the above is not in agreement with your records, please note in the space provided the particulars shown 
in your records and any information which may help reconcile the difference from our records.

Very truly yours,

[Client's Authorized Signature]

The above information is correct as of______ [date] with the following exceptions (if any):_______

[Date]________________ [Signature]___________________
[Title] ___________________
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[Date]

13.014 MORTGAGE DEBT CONFIRMATION 
[Client's Letterhead]

Our auditors_____________________________ [name and address of auditors] are concluding an audit
of our financial statements. Accordingly, please confirm directly to our auditors the following information 
about our mortgage indebtedness to you as of_______[date]:

1. Original amount ________________
2. Date of note ________________
3. Unpaid principal balance -------------------------
4. Interest rate ________________
5. Terms for payment of principal ------------------------
6. Date to which interest has been paid ------------------------
7. Nature of mortgage and description or address of property mortgaged -------------------------
8. Amounts on deposit with you in escrow for:

a. Insurance ________________
b. Real estate taxes ________________

9. Amounts paid during the period_______ [dates from and to] for:
a. Insurance ________________
b. Taxes ________________

10. Amounts on deposit with you for the "reserve for repairs" -------------------------
11. The nature of defaults, if any ________________
12. Description of terms, e.g., prepayment penalties, demand provisions, etc. -------------------------

A return envelope is enclosed for your reply.

Very truly yours,

[Client's Authorized Signature]
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The above information agrees with our records at______________[date] with the following exceptions:

Signed:________________________________ Date:_________________
[Name and Title]

Note to User:

Many of the items requested will vary with the circumstances of the particular mortgage or other debt 
involved. The above sample assumes the indenture involves an escrow arrangement for insurance and real 
estate taxes and a deposit account for repairs.
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[Date]

13.015 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE CONFIRMATION 
[Client's Letterhead]

In connection with the audit of our financial statements, please confirm directly to our auditors 
_____________________________ [name and address of auditors], the amount of our liability to you as 
of_______ [date]. Please attach a statement of our account due. If no balance is due, please attach a
statement of our account showing payments made.

Please mail your reply directly to______________[name of auditors]. A stamped, addressed envelope
is enclosed for your convenience.

Very truly yours,

[Client's Authorized Signature]

Our records indicate that a balance of $______ was due from______________________________[name
of client] at_______ [date].

Signed:______________________________________________ Date:_______________________
[Name and Title]
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13.016 CONFIRMATION OF LINES OF CREDIT

[Date]

*

In connection with an audit of the financial statements of______________________________ [name of
client] as of_______[balance-sheet date] and for the_______ [period] then ended, we have advised our
independent auditors of the information listed below, which we believe is a complete and accurate 
description of our line of credit from your financial institution as of the close of business on_______
[balance-sheet date]. Although we do not request nor expect you to conduct a comprehensive, detailed 
search of your records, if during the process of completing this confirmation additional information about 
other lines of credit from your financial institution comes to your attention, please include such information 
below.

The company has available at the financial institution a line of credit totaling________[amount]. The
current terms of the line of credit are contained in letter dated_________ [date]. The related debt
outstanding at the close of business_______ [date] was $_______ .

The amount of unused line of credit, subject to terms of the related letter, at_______[date] was $_______
[amount].

Interest rate at the close of business on_______[date] was____ %.

Compensating balance arrangements are___________________________________________________

This line of credit supports commercial paper (or other borrowing arrangements) as described below:

* This letter should be addressed to a financial institution official who is responsible for the financial 
institution's relationship with the client or is knowledgeable about the lines of credit. Some financial 
institutions centralize this function by assigning responsibility for responding to confirmation requests 
to a separate function. Independent auditors should ascertain the appropriate recipient.
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Please confirm whether the information about lines of credit presented above is correct by signing below 
and returning this letter directly to our independent auditors______________________________ [name
and address of auditors].

Very truly yours,

[Name of Client]

By:------------------------------------------
[Authorized Signature]

Dear CPA Firm:

The above information regarding the line of credit arrangements agrees with the records of this financial 
institution.† Although we have not conducted a comprehensive, detailed search of our records, no 
information about other lines of credit came to our attention. [Note exceptions below or in attached letter.]

[Name of Financial Institution]

By: [Officer]____________________
[Title] ____________________
[Date] ____________________

† If applicable, comments similar to the following may be added to the confirmation reply by the 
financial institution: "This confirmation does not relate to arrangements, if any, with other branches 
or affiliates of this financial institution." Information should be sought separately from such branches 
or affiliates with which any such arrangements might exist.
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13.017 CONFIRMATION OF CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
[Client's Letterhead]

[Date]

*

In connection with an audit of the financial statements of______________________________ [name of
client] as of_______[balance-sheet date] and for the_______ [period] then ended, we have advised our
independent auditors of the information listed below, which we believe is a complete and accurate 
description of our contingent liabilities, including oral and written guarantees, with your financial 
institution. Although we do not request nor expect you to conduct a comprehensive, detailed search of 
your records, if during the process of completing this confirmation additional information about other lines 
of credit from your financial institution comes to your attention, please include such information below.

Name of Maker Date of Note Due Date Current Balance

Interest Rate

Date Through 
Which Interest 

Is Paid

Description 
of

Collateral.

Description 
of Purpose 

of Note

Information related to oral and written guarantees is as follows:

This letter should be addressed to a financial institution official who is responsible for the financial 
institution's relationship with the client or is knowledgeable about the lines of credit. Some financial 
institutions centralize this function by assigning responsibility for responding to confirmation requests 
to a separate function. Independent auditors should ascertain the appropriate recipient.
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Please confirm whether the information about contingent liabilities presented above is correct by signing 
below and returning this directly to our independent auditors_____________________________ [name
and address of auditors].

Very truly yours,

[Client's Authorized Signature]

Dear CPA Firm:

The above information listing contingent liabilities, including oral and written guarantees, agrees with the 
records of this financial institution. † Although we have not conducted a comprehensive, detailed search 
of our records, no information about other contingent liabilities, including oral and written guarantees, 
came to our attention. [Note exceptions below or in attached letter.]

[Name of Financial Institution]

By: [Officer and Title]___________
[Date] ___________

† If applicable, comments similar to the following may be added to the confirmation reply by the 
financial institution: "This confirmation does not relate to arrangements, if any, with other branches 
or affiliates of this financial institution." Information should be sought separately from such branches 
or affiliates with which any such arrangements might exist.
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[Date]

13.018 REGISTRAR-CAPITAL STOCK 
[Client's Letterhead]

Our auditors_____________________________ [name and address of auditors] are conducting an audit
of our financial statements. Accordingly, please confirm directly to our auditors the following information 
as of the close of business_______ [balance-sheet date] about each class of our preferred and common
stock:

1. Authorized number of shares __________________________
2. Issued number of shares __________________________
3. Outstanding number of shares__________________________

Please also indicate the amount of any unpaid registrar fees due you as of______ [balance-sheet date].

A return envelope is enclosed for your convenience.

Very truly yours,

[Client's Authorized Signature]

The above information agrees with our records at_____________ [balance-sheet date] with the following
exceptions:

Signed:________________________________ Date:_________________
[Name and Title]

Notes to User:

• It may be helpful to include the registrar's account number for the client's account to receive a 
timely response.

• Some auditors prefer that the confirmation request include identification of each class of stock.
• The above illustration assumes the client has a separate transfer agent.
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13.019 TRANSFER AGENT-CAPITAL STOCK 
[Client's Letterhead]

[Date]

Our auditors_____________________________ [name and address of auditors] are conducting an audit
of our financial statements. Accordingly, please confirm directly to our auditors the following information 
as of_______ [balance-sheet date] about each class of our preferred and common stock:

1. Authorized number of shares__________________________
2. Number of shares issued and outstanding __________________________
3. Number of outstanding shares registered in the name of our Company ______________________

Please also indicate the amount of any unpaid transfer agent fees due you as of_______ [balance-sheet
date].

A return envelope is enclosed for your convenience.

Very truly yours,

[Client's Authorized Signature]

The above information agrees with our records at_____________ [balance-sheet date] with the following
exceptions:

Signed:  ___________________________ Date:_________________
[Name and Title]

Notes to User:

• It may be helpful to include the transfer agent's account number for the client's account to receive a 
timely response.

• Some auditors prefer that the confirmation request include identification of each class of stock.
• Depending on the auditor's judgment in the circumstances the confirmation request may also include 

inquiries about such matters as (i) the number of shares issued to each of specifically mentioned 
officers and directors, (ii) specified information about shareholders owning more than a stated percent 
of the total outstanding shares, and (iii) amounts deposited during the year for the payment of 
dividends.
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[Date]

13.020 RELATED-PARTY CONFIRMATION 
[Client's Letterhead]

In connection with an audit of our financial statements, please furnish answers to the attached 
questionnaire, sign your name, and return the questionnaire in the enclosed envelope directly to our 
auditors____________________________ [name and address of auditors]. The questionnaire is designed
to provide the auditors with information about the interests of officers, directors, and other related parties 
in transactions with our Company.

Please answer all questions. If the answer to any question is "yes," please explain. Certain terms used in 
questions are defined at the end of the questionnaire.

Very truly yours,

[Client's Authorized Signature]

Related-Party Questionnaire

1. Have you or any related party of yours had any material interest, direct or indirect, in any sales,
purchases, transfers, leasing arrangements or guarantees, or other transactions since_________
[beginning of client's year] to which the Company (or specify any pension, retirement, savings, or 
similar plan provided by the client) was, or is to be, a party?

2. Do you or any related party of yours have any material interest, direct or indirect, in any pending or 
incomplete sales, purchases, transfers, leasing arrangements, guarantees, or other transactions to 
which the Company (or specify any pension, retirement, savings, or similar plan provided by the 
client) was, or is to be, a party?

3. Have you or any related party of yours been indebted to the Company (or specify any pension,
retirement, savings, or similar plan provided by the client) at any time since_______ [beginning of
client's year]? Please exclude amounts due for purchases on usual trade terms and for ordinary travel 
and expense advances.

The answers to the foregoing questions are correctly stated to the best of my knowledge and belief.

Signed:______________________________________________ Date:_______________________

See definitions at end of questionnaire.
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DEFINITIONS

COMPANY: Parent company and any subsidiary or affiliate.

RELATED PARTY: Any (1) corporation or organization (other than the Company) of which you are an 
officer, director, or partner or are, directly or indirectly, the beneficial owner of 10 percent or more of 
any class of equity securities; (2) any trust or other estate in which you have a substantial beneficial 
ownership or for which you serve as trustee or in a similar fiduciary capacity; and (3) any close relative 
of yours or your spouse's or other person you may significantly influence (control) or be significantly 
influenced by.

CONTROL: Possession, direct or indirect, of the power to direct or cause the direction of the 
management and policies of a party, whether through ownership, by contract, or otherwise.

PERSON: An individual, a corporation, a partnership, an association, a joint-stock company, a business 
trust, or an unincorporated organization.

BENEFICIAL OWNER: Person who enjoys, or has the right to secure, benefits substantially equivalent 
to those of the ownership of securities, even though the securities are not registered in the person's name. 
Examples of beneficial ownership include securities held for the person's benefit in the name of others, 
such as nominees, custodians, brokers, trustees, executors, and other fiduciaries; a partnership of which 
the person is a partner; and a corporation for which the person owns substantially all of the stock. Shares 
(1) held (individually or in a fiduciary capacity) by the person's spouse, the person's or his or her spouse's 
minor children, or a relative of the person or his or her spouse who shares the same home with the person; 
or (2) as to which the person can vest or revest title in himself at once or at some future time are also 
considered as being beneficially owned.

8/95 13.020



13-28 COMPREHENSIVE ENGAGEMENT MANUAL

13.021 UNIFORM COMMERCIAL CODE—REQUEST FOR INFORMATION OR COPIES-FORM UCC-11 Rev.1-78
(Please type this form and present in duplicate to the filing officer)

DEBTOR(S) (LAST NAME, FIRST) AND ADDRESS(ES) PARTY REQUESTING INFORMATION OR COPIES FILING OFFICER USE

PERIOD TO BE SEARCHED: FROM_____________________________________________ 19_________ TO__________________________________ 19_________ INCLUSIVE.
FEES: INFORMATION REQUEST: $2.00 per name, for the first year searched, plus fifty cents for each additional year searched.

COPIES: $1.25 per page, plus fifty cents for certification.

FILING OFFICER:

[] INFORMATION REQUEST: Filing officer please furnish certificate showing whether there is on file any presently effective financing statement, any 
other statement, or any federal lax lien notice (except real estate mortgages effective as financing statements) naming 
the debtor(s) listed above, give the date and hour of filing of each such statement, and the names and addresses of each 
secured party or grantee named therein.

□ COPY REQUEST: Filing officer please furnish copies of each statement or lax lien notice listed below which is on file with your office.

□ CERTIFIED COPIES: (Check only if desired). Please certify the requested statements or tax lien notices.

(Signature of requesting parly)

FILE NUMBER DATE AND HOUR OF FILING NAME AND ADDRESS(ES) OF SECURED PARTY(lES)

CAUTION: THIS SEARCH REPORT DOES NOT PURPORT TO SHOW REAL ESTATE MORTGAGES (OR DEEDS OF TRUST) EFFECTIVE AS 
_____________ FINANCING STATEMENTS PURSUANT TO 84-9-402(6). C.R.S. 1973. AS AMENDED._______________________________________________________  

CERTIFICATE: I, the undersigned filing officer, hereby certify that I have made a diligent search of the records for the period requested above for the 
specific name(s) of the debtor(s) above designated (excluding similar names); and that

□ the above listing is a record of all presently effective financing statements, any other statements or federal tax lien notices, which name the above 
debtor(s) (except any real estate mortgages effective as financing statements) which were on file in my office from_______________________________________
____________________________________________ 19_________ to______________________________________ _ 19_______ _ inclusive, as per your request:

□ the attached---------------- pages are true and exact copies of all statements or tax lien notices on file in my office listed in the above request.

Additional fee requested $_________________________________Date_______________________________________

Signature of Filing Officer

FILING COPY I—To be returned with copies of information
FILING COPY 2—To he retained by filing officer
FILING COPY 3— To be retained by requesting party

Form UCC-11 Request for Information or copies—
Bradford Publishing Company. 1846 Stout St Denver. CO 80202 (573 -5011) —12-78
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13.022 LETTER TO OTHER ACCOUNTANTS UPON 
WHOSE WORK WE PLAN TO RELY 

[Firm's Letterhead]

[Date]

We are auditing the financial statements of___________________________________ [client's name],
________________________[parent company]. The financial statements of_________________ [other 
accountants' client's name] that you are auditing are to be included in the financial statements of 
________________________[client's name]. We will rely on your report on the financial statements in 
expressing an opinion on the (consolidated) financial statements of______________________ [client's
name] (and subsidiaries). In that connection, we will refer to your report.

Please confirm to us that your firm is independent with respect to______________________________
[client's name] and_______________________________ [other accountants' client's name] within the
meaning of Rule 101 of the Code of Professional Conduct of the American Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants.

Please provide us promptly, in writing, with the following information in connection with your current 
audit of the financial statements of_____________________________ [other accountants' client's name]
with respect to:

1. Related-party transactions or other matters that have come to your attention. We are aware of the
following related parties:_____________________________ [names of known related parties].

2. Any limitation on the scope of your audit that is related to the financial statements of 
 [client's name], or that limits your ability to respond to this 
inquiry.

Please update your letter to indicate any additional matters of the type designated above that have come 
to your attention through the date of your report on the financial statements of_________________ [other
accountants' client's name].

Very truly yours,

[Engagement Partner's Signature]
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[Date]

13.023 REPRESENTATION LETTER TO OTHER ACCOUNTANTS 
[Firm's Letterhead]

In connection with the report you have been requested to reissue on the financial statements of 
_____________________________ [client's name] for the year ended_______ [date], which statements 
are to be included comparatively with similar statements for the year ended_______[date], we make the
following representations.

We have audited (or reviewed or compiled) the balance sheet of_______________________________
[client's name] as of______ [balance-sheet date] and the related statements of earnings, retained earnings,
and cash flows for the year then ended. Our procedures in connection with the engagement did not disclose 
any events or transactions subsequent to_______[predecessor's balance-sheet date] that, in our opinion,
would have a material effect upon the financial statements, or which would require mention in the notes 
to the financial statements of_______[client's name] for the year then ended.

Should anything come to our attention prior to the date our report is issued that, in our judgment, would 
have a material effect upon the financial statements covered by your report, we shall notify you promptly.

Very truly yours,

[Engagement Partner's Signature]

Note to User:

If any matters come to the firm's attention that may require revision of the previous financial statements, 
they should be included in a separate paragraph after approval by the engagement partner.
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[Date]

13.024 ENGAGEMENT LETTER — AUDIT ENGAGEMENT 
[Firm's Letterhead]

This letter is to confirm my (our) understanding of the terms and objectives of my (our) engagement.

(I)_____________ [engagement partner name] will be the partner in charge of all work I (we) perform
for you. Auditing and reporting on your financial statements is to be my (our) recurring basic assignment. 
I (We) would also like to help you with current problems as they arise throughout the year.

(I) We will audit the Company's financial statements for the year ending___________ [financial statement
date] for the purpose of expressing an opinion on them. The proper recording of transactions, safeguarding 
of assets, and the financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. (My) Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements.

(I) We will conduct our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards 
require that (I) we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence which 
supports the amounts and disclosures included in the financial statements. It also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used and estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation. If, for any reason, I am (we are) unable to express an unqualified opinion on the 
financial statements, I (we) will discuss the alternatives with you in order to arrive at an acceptable 
solution.

Although the audit is designed to provide reasonable assurance of detecting errors and irregularities that 
are material to the financial statements, it is not designed and cannot be relied upon to disclose all fraud, 
defalcations, or other irregularities. However, we will inform you of any material errors, and all 
irregularities or illegal acts, unless they are clearly inconsequential, that come to our attention.

Assistance to be supplied by your personnel, including the preparation of schedules and analyses of 
accounts, is described on a separate attachment. Timely completion of this work will facilitate the 
completion of my (our) audit.

As part of my (our) engagement for the year ending__________ [financial statement date], I (we) also
will prepare the federal and state income tax returns for___________ [client name].

My (Our) fees will be billed as work progresses and are based on the amount of time required plus actual 
out-of-pocket expenses. Invoices are payable upon presentation. I (We) will notify you immediately of any 
circumstances I (we) encounter that could significantly affect my (our) initial estimate of total fees of 
$________ .
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If the foregoing is in accordance with your understanding, please sign and return to me (us) the duplicate 
copy of this letter.

I (We) very much appreciate the opportunity to serve you and trust that my (our) association will be a long 
and pleasant one.

Yours very truly,

[Engagement Partner's Name]

[Client's Name]

Accepted:

[Representative's Name]

[Title]

[Date]
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13.025 ENGAGEMENT LETTER-COMPILATION ENGAGEMENT
[Firm's Letterhead]

[Date]

This letter is to confirm my (our) understanding of the terms and objectives of my (our) engagement and 
the nature and limitations of the services I (we) will provide.

I (We) will perform the following services:

• I (We) will compile, from information you provide, the annual and interim balance sheets and related 
statements of income, retained earnings, and cash flows of_________________[client name] for
the year 19__ . I (We) will not audit or review such financial statements. My (Our) report on the
annual financial statements of____________________ [client name] is presently expected to read as
follows:

I (We) have compiled the accompanying balance sheet of____________________ [client name]
as of___________ [financial statement date] and the related statements of income, retained
earnings, and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with Statements on Standards for 
Accounting and Review Services issued by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

A compilation is limited to presenting in the form of financial statements information that is 
the representation of management (owners). I (We) have not audited or reviewed the 
accompanying financial statements and, accordingly, do not express an opinion or any other 
form of assurance on them.

My (Our) report on your interim financial statements, which will omit substantially all disclosures, will 
include an additional paragraph that will read as follows:

Management has elected to omit substantially all of the disclosures required by generally 
accepted accounting principles. If the omitted disclosures were included in the financial 
statements, they might influence the user's conclusions about the company's financial 
position, results of operations, and cash flows. Accordingly, these financial statements 
are not designed for those who are not informed about such matters.

If, for any reason, I am (we are) unable to complete the compilation of your financial 
statements, I (we) will not issue a report on such statements as a result of this 
engagement.
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• I (We) will assist your bookkeeper in adjusting the books of account so that he or she will be able to 
prepare a working trial balance from which financial statements can be compiled. Your bookkeeper 
will provide me (us) with a detailed trial balance and any supporting schedules I (we) require.

• I (We) will also prepare the federal and _______________ [state] income tax returns for
_________________________ [client name] for the fiscal year ended_______________ .

My (Our) engagement cannot be relied upon to disclose errors, irregularities, or illegal acts, including 
fraud or defalcations, that may exist. However, I (we) will inform the appropriate level of management 
of material errors that come to my (our) attention and any irregularities or illegal acts that come to my (our) 
attention, unless they are clearly inconsequential.

My (Our) fees for these services....

I (We) shall be pleased to discuss this letter with you at any time.

If the foregoing is in accordance with your understanding, please sign the copy of this letter in the space 
provided and return it to me (us).

Sincerely yours,

Acknowledged:

Title

Date
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13.026 ENGAGEMENT LETTER—REVIEW ENGAGEMENT 
[Firm's Letterhead]

[Date]

This letter is to confirm my (our) understanding of the terms and objectives of my (our) engagement and 
the nature and limitations of the services I (we) will provide.

I (We) will review the balance sheet of___________________________________ [client name] as of
____________________[balance-sheet date], and the related statements of income, retained earnings, and 
cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review 
Services issued by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

My (Our) review will consist primarily of inquiries of company personnel and analytical procedures, and 
I (we) will require a client representation letter from you. A review does not contemplate obtaining an 
understanding of the internal control structure or assessing control risk, tests of accounting records and 
responses to inquiries by obtaining corroborating evidential matter, and certain other procedures ordinarily 
performed during an audit. Thus, a review does not provide assurance that I (we) will become aware of 
all significant matters that would be disclosed in an audit.

My (Our) engagement cannot be relied upon to disclose errors, irregularities, or illegal acts, including 
fraud or defalcations, that may exist. However, I (we) will inform the appropriate level of management 
of material errors that come to my (our) attention and any irregularities or illegal acts that come to my (our) 
attention, unless they are clearly inconsequential.

I (We) will not perform an audit of such financial statements, the objective of which is the expression of 
an opinion regarding the financial statements taken as a whole, and accordingly, I (we) will not express 
such an opinion on them.

My (Our) report is presently expected to read as follows:

I (We) have reviewed the accompanying balance-sheet of__________________ [client
name] as of_________________ [balance sheet date], and the related statements of
income, retained earnings, and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with 
Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review Services issued by the American 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. All information included in these financial 
statements is the representation of the management of___________________ [client
name].
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A review consists principally of inquiries of company personnel and analytical procedures 
applied to financial data. It is substantially less in scope than an audit in accordance with 
generally accepted auditing standards, the objective of which is the expression of an 
opinion regarding the financial statements taken as a whole. Accordingly, I (we) do not 
express such an opinion.

Based on my (our) review, I am (we are) not aware of any material modifications that 
should be made to the accompanying financial statements in order for them to be in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

If, for any reason, I am (we are) unable to complete my (our) review of your financial statements, I (we) 
will not issue a report on such statements as a result of this engagement.

I (We) will provide your bookkeeper with such consultation on accounting matters as he or she may be 
required in adjusting and closing the books of account and in drafting financial statements for my (our) 
review. Your bookkeeper also will provide me (us) with a detailed trial balance and any supporting 
schedules I (we) require.

My (Our) fees for these services....

I (We) shall be pleased to discuss this letter with you at any time.

If the foregoing is in accordance with your understanding, please sign the copy of this letter in the space 
provided and return it to me (us).

Sincerely yours,

Acknowledged:

Title

Date
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13.027 PROPOSAL LETTER

[Date]

We appreciate this opportunity to present a proposal for [nature of services] and a brief description of our 
firm and services.

Our firm was formed in 19_. We have _ partners and _ staff and support personnel working with clients 
in accounting and auditing, taxation, and various consulting services. Although we serve all size clients, 
our clientele consists primarily of small and medium-size business such as yours.

Our professional objectives are to provide the highest quality services on a timely basis. As a member of 
the AICPA Division of Firm's Private Companies Practice Section, our accounting and auditing practice 
has been subjected to a review by another firm of CPAs. We received an unqualified opinion as a result 
of that review. We extend our client relationships to include ongoing contact and services to achieve our 
services objectives.

We have extensive experience in the_____ industry. This experience and related understanding of your
industry's operations permit us to design, perform, and complete engagements for your company 
effectively and at a reasonable cost.

Our services include the following:

• Accounting, Auditing, and Attestation Services

Our accounting, auditing, and attestation services include annual or special audits, compilations 
and reviews of financial statements, and the examination and review of financial and other 
information under the attestation standards. We accompany our report on audited financial 
statements with a reportable conditions letter and a management letter that include suggestions to. 
correct internal control weaknesses and recommendations for operational efficiencies. Our 
purpose in making these suggestions is to help you accomplish your operational objectives. These 
suggestions often result in cost savings.

• Tax Services

We offer diversified tax service, including assistance in all phases of federal, state, and local 
income taxes; estate, inheritance, and gift taxes; and payroll and other taxes. These services 
include tax return preparation, tax research, and representation of clients at administrative 
proceedings before the various taxing authorities. The objectives of our tax services are to 
minimize taxes and potential problems.
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• Consulting Services

Our consulting services are designed to assist clients in improving efficiency and profitability. Our 
approach offers assistance in such areas as developing plans for problem identification or 
implementing more effective operating controls, evaluating information systems and installing or 
upgrading data processing systems.

_______________ , an audit partner, will be primarily responsible for your engagement.

As you requested, our proposal is for_____________________ [state nature of services].

We estimate that our fees for the proposed services will be approximately $_______ , plus out-of-pocket
expenses, billable as the work progresses. Our fees are based on time spent on the engagement. Should 
we encounter any unforeseen circumstances requiring additional time, you will be notified promptly of the 
situation.

Our fee estimate is based on the assumption that your personnel will prepare certain schedules and analyses 
for us. We also anticipate their assistance in locating invoices and other documents for our examination.

Our firm is organized and staffed to help you satisfy our business needs. Please call_________ with
questions about this proposal.

Very truly yours,

[Firm Signature]
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13.028 INQUIRY LETTER TO LEGAL COUNSEL 
[Client's Letterhead]

[Date]

In connection with an audit of our financial statements at______ [balance-sheet date] and for the_______
[period] then ended, management of the Company has prepared, and furnished to our auditors 
____________________________ [name and address of auditors], a description and evaluation of certain 
contingencies, including those set forth below involving matters with respect to which you have been 
engaged and to which you have devoted substantive attention on behalf of the Company in the form of legal 
consultation or representation. These contingencies are regarded by management of the Company as 
material for this purpose (management may indicate a materiality limit if an understanding has been reached 
with the auditor). Your response should include matters that existed at [balance-sheet date] and 
during the period from that date to the date of your response.

Pending or Threatened Litigation

[Ordinarily the information would include the following: (1) the nature of the litigation, (2) the 
progress of the case to date, (3) how management is responding or intends to respond to the 
litigation (for example, to contest the case vigorously or to seek an out-of-court settlement), and (4) 
an evaluation of the likelihood of an unfavorable outcome and an estimate, if one can be made, of 
the amount or range of potential loss.]

Please furnish to our auditors such explanation, if any, that you consider necessary to supplement the 
foregoing information, including an explanation of those matters as to which your views may differ from 
those stated and an identification of the omission of any pending or threatened litigation, claims, and 
assessments or a statement that the list of such matters is complete.

Unasserted Claims and Assessments

[Ordinarily management's information would include the following: (1) the nature of the matter, (2) 
how management intends to respond if the claim is asserted, and (3) an evaluation of the likelihood 
of an unfavorable outcome and an estimate, if one can be made, of the amount or range of potential 
loss.]

Please furnish to our auditors such explanation, if any, that you consider necessary to supplement the 
foregoing information, including an explanation of those matters as to which your views may differ from 
those stated.

We understand that whenever, in the course of performing legal services for us with respect to a matter 
recognized to involve an unasserted possible claim or assessment that may call for financial statement 
disclosure, if you have formed a professional conclusion that we should disclose or consider disclosure 
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concerning such possible claim or assessment, as a matter of professional responsibility to us, you will so 
advise us and will consult with us concerning the question of such disclosure and the applicable 
requirements of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 5. Please specifically confirm to our 
auditors that our understanding is correct.

Please specifically identify the nature of and reasons for any limitation on your response.

[The auditor may request the client to inquire about additional matters, for example, unpaid or unbilled 
charges or specified information on certain contractually assumed obligations of the company, such as 
guarantees of indebtedness of others.]

  Very truly yours,

[Client's Authorized Signature]

Notes to User:

(1) Auditors should carefully consider the provisions of Statement on Auditing Standards No. 12, Inquiry 
of a Client's Lawyer Concerning Litigation, Claims, and Assessments (AU 337), in drafting this letter.

(2) Sending of this letter should be timed so that the lawyer's response is dated within two weeks of the 
auditor's report date. However, the auditor and client should consider early mailing of a draft inquiry 
as a convenience for the lawyer in preparing a timely response to the formal inquiry letter.

(3) If a client has not needed to retain legal counsel, an unqualified opinion may be expressed on the 
financial statements even though a letter from legal counsel has not been obtained. In these 
circumstances, a written representation should be obtained from the Company that legal counsel has 
not been retained for matters concerning business operations that may involve current or prospective 
litigation (see AICPA Technical Practice Aids, section 8340.10).
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13.029 INQUIRY LETTER TO LEGAL COUNSEL IF MANAGEMENT HAS NOT
PROVIDED DETAILS ABOUT PENDING OR THREATENED LITIGATION 

[Client's Letterhead]

[Date]

In connection with an audit of our financial statements as of________ [balance-sheet date], please furnish
our auditors__________________________________ [name and address of auditors] with information
requested below for which you have been engaged to provide legal consultation or representation.

1. Pending or threatened litigation, claims and assessments (excluding unasserted claims and 
assessments):

Please furnish a list of all pending or threatened litigation, claims or assessments your firm is 
handling on our behalf, including the following: (1) the nature of the litigation (including the 
amount of monetary or other damages sought); (2) progress of the case to date; (3) how 
management is responding or intends to respond to the litigation (for example, to contest the case 
vigorously or to seek an out-of-court settlement); and (4) an evaluation of the likelihood of an 
unfavorable outcome and an estimate, if one can be made, of the amount or range of potential loss.

2. Unasserted claims and assessments:

We understand that whenever, in the course of performing legal services for us with respect to a 
matter recognized to involve an unasserted possible claim or assessment that may call for financial 
statement disclosure, if you have formed a professional conclusion that we should disclose or 
consider disclosing such possible claim or assessment, as a matter of professional responsibility to 
us, you will so advise us and will consult with us concerning the question of such disclosure and 
the applicable requirements of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 5. Please 
specifically confirm to our auditors that our understanding is correct.

We have represented to__________ [name of auditors] that there are no unasserted claims, which
are not specifically identified in this letter, that you have advised us are probable of assertion and 
must be disclosed in accordance with SFAS No. 5.

(If unasserted claims exist, management's listed information should include the following: (1) the 
nature of the matter; (2) how management intends to respond if the claim is asserted; and (3) an 
evaluation of the likelihood of an unfavorable outcome and an estimate, if one can be made, of the 
amount or range of potential loss.)
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Please furnish our auditors any explanation you consider necessary to supplement the foregoing 
information, including an explanation of these matters as to which your views may differ from those stated.

Please specifically identify the nature of and reasons for any limitation on your response.

[The auditor may request the client to inquire about additional matters, for example, unpaid or unbilled 
charges or specified information on certain contractually assumed obligations of the organization, such as 
guarantees of indebtedness of others.]

Very truly yours,

[Client's Authorized Signature]

Notes to User:

(1) Auditors should carefully consider the provisions of Statement on Auditing Standards No. 12, Inquiry 
of a Client’s Lawyer Concerning Litigation, Claims, and Assessments (AU 337), in drafting this letter.

(2) Sending of this letter should be timed so that the lawyer's response is dated within two weeks of the 
auditor's report date. However, the auditor and client should consider early mailing of a draft inquiry 
as a convenience for the lawyer in preparing a timely response to the formal inquiry letter.

(3) If a client has not needed to retain legal counsel, an unqualified opinion may be expressed on the 
financial statements even though a letter from legal counsel has not been obtained. In these 
circumstances, a written representation should be obtained from the Company that legal counsel has 
not been retained for matters concerning its operations that involve current or prospective litigation 
(see AICPA Technical Practice Aids, section 8340.10).
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13.030 PENSION PLAN ACTUARIAL INFORMATION

[Client's Letterhead]

[Date]

Gentlemen:

In connection with the audit of our financial statements for the period ending______ [balance-sheet date]
by our independent auditors,_____________________________ [name and address of auditors], please
furnish them the information described below as it pertains to the XYZ Company, Inc. pension plan, which 
is a defined benefit plan. For your convenience in response to those requests, you may supply pertinent 
sections, properly signed and dated, of your actuarial report, or pension expense report, if they are 
available and if they contain the requested information.

A. Please provide a brief description of the following:
1. The employee group covered.
2. The benefit provisions of the plan used in the calculation of the net periodic pension cost for the 

period and of the accumulated benefit obligation and the projected benefit obligation at the end of 
the period.

Please identify any such benefit provisions that had not taken effect in the year. Please also 
provide the date of the most recent plan amendment included in your calculation. Please identify 
any participants or benefits excluded from the calculations, such as benefits guaranteed under an 
insurance or annuity contract.

3. The plan sponsor's funding policy for the plan.
4. Any significant liabilities other than for benefits, such as for legal or accounting fees.
5. The method and the amortization period, if any, used for the following:

a. Calculation of a market-related value of plan assets, if different from the fair value.
b. Amortization of any transition asset or obligation.
c. Amortization of unrecognized prior service cost.
d. Amortization of unrecognized net gain or loss.

6. Any substantive commitments for benefits that exceed the benefits defined by the written plan that 
are included in the calculations.

7. Determination of the value of any insurance or annuity contracts included in the assets.
8. Nature and effect of significant plan amendments and other significant matters affecting 

comparability of net periodic pension cost, funded status and other information for the current 
period with that for the prior period.

9. The following information relating to the employee census data used in calculating the benefit 
obligations and pension cost:
a. The source and nature of the data is________ and the date as of which the census data was

collected is____________.
b. The following information concerning participants:
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Participants
Number 

of persons
Compensation 
(if applicable)

Currently receiving payments _____________ ________________
Active with vested benefits _____________ ________________
Terminated with deferred vested benefits _____________ ________________
Active without vested benefits _____________ ________________
Other (describe) _____________ ________________

Note: If information is not available for all the above categories, please indicate the categories that have 
been grouped and describe any group or groups of participants excluded from the above information.

c. Information for the following individuals contained in the census:

Participants' 
name or number

Date hired 
or years 

of service
Age or 

birth date Sex Salary

Practice Tip:
The auditor should select information from employer records to compare with the census data used by 
the actuary. In addition, the auditor may wish to have the actuary select certain census data from his 
files to compare with the employer's records.

B. Please provide the following information on the net periodic pension cost for the period ending on

1. Service cost
2. Interest cost
3. Actual return on assets
4. Other components

a. Net asset gain or (loss) during the period deferred for later recognition
b. Amortization of net loss or (gain) from earlier periods
c. Amortization of unrecognized prior service cost
d. Amortization of the remaining unrecognized net obligation or (asset) 

existing at the date of the initial application of FASB Statement No. 
87—transition obligation or (asset)

e. Net total of components (a+b+c+d)
5. Net periodic pension cost (1 +2+3 +4e) -----------------
6. The above measurement of the net periodic pension cost is based on the $-----------------

following assumptions:
Weighted-average discount rate
Weighted-average rate of compensation increase __________ %
Weighted-average expected long-term rate of return on plan assets __________ %
Please describe the basis on which the above rates were selected and whether ----------------%
the basis is consistent with the prior period.
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Please briefly describe the other assumptions used in the above measurement.

7. The calculations of the items shown in B1 to B5 are based on the following:
Asset information at -----------------
Census data at ------------------
Measurement date (must be not more than three months before the end of the
last fiscal year) ------------------

Please describe any adjustments made to project the census data forward to the measurement date 
or to project the results calculated at an earlier date to those shown in B1 to B5.

C. Please provide the following information on the benefit obligations for disclosure in the financial 
statements for the period ending___________ :

Estimated

1. Pension benefit obligation
a. Accumulated benefit obligation

—Vested $-----------------
—Nonvested -----------------
—Total ------------------

b. Additional benefits based on estimated future salary levels ___________
c. Projected benefit obligation (a+b) -----------------

2. Fair value of plan assets -----------------
3. Unfunded projected benefit obligation:

(1c -2) -----------------
4. Unrecognized prior service cost -----------------
5. Unrecognized net loss or (gain) ------------------
6. Unrecognized net transition liability or (asset) -----------------
7. Additional liability -----------------
8. Accrued or (prepaid) pension cost in the company financial statements -----------------

(3-4-5-6+7) $___________
9. The above amount of the projected benefit obligation is measured based on

the following assumptions:

Weighted-average discount rate __________ %
Weighted-average rate of compensation increase __________ %

Please provide a brief description of the other assumptions used in the 
measurement.

10. The calculation of the items shown in C1 to C8 is based on the following:
Asset information at ___________
Census data at ___________
Measurement date (must be not more than three months before the current
fiscal year end) ___________
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Please describe any adjustments made to project the census data forward to the measurement date 
or to project the results calculated at an earlier date to those shown in C1 to C8.

11. Please describe any significant events noted subsequent to the current year's measurement date and 
as of the date of your reply to this request and the effects of those events, such as a large plant 
closing, which could materially affect the amounts shown in C1 to C8.

D. Please provide an analysis for the period showing beginning amounts, additions, reductions and ending 
amounts of the:

1. Projected benefit obligation,
2. Unrecognized prior service cost,
3. Unrecognized net loss (gain), and
4. Net transition obligation (asset).

E. Please provide our independent accountants with descriptions and the amounts of gains or losses from 
settlements, curtailments or termination benefits during the year, such as:

1. Purchases of annuity contracts,
2. Lump-sum cash payments to plan participants,
3. Other irrevocable actions that relieved the company or the plan of primary responsibility for a 

pension obligation and eliminates significant risks related to the obligation and assets,
4. Any events that significantly reduced the expected years of future service of employees,
5. Any events that eliminated for a significant number of employees the accrual of defined benefits 

for some or all of their future service, or
6. Any special or contractual termination benefits offered to employees.

F. Was all of the information above determined in accordance with FASB Statements Nos. 87 and 88 
(including the FASB's "Guides to Implementation of Statements 87 and 88" and the American Academy 
of Actuaries' "An Actuary's Guide to Compliance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 
No. 87") to the best of your knowledge? If not, please describe any differences.

G. Describe the nature of your relationship, if any, with the plan or the plan sponsor that may impair or 
appear to impair the objectivity of your work.

Very truly yours,

[Client's Authorized Signature]
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13.031 PENSION PLAN ASSETS HELD BY TRUSTEE 
[Client's Letterhead]

[Date]

Our auditors_____________________________ [name and address of auditors] are conducting an audit
of our financial statements. Accordingly, please provide our auditors directly with a listing of the assets 
including market values as of_______________________ [date] for our employees' pension trust
______________________________[title and trustee's account number].

Please also provide the auditors with the following information about our employees' pension trust for the 
period from [beginning of period] to [end of period] [see note below]:

1. Contributions by the Company during the above period.

2. Contributions by employees during the above period.

3. Payments to beneficiaries during the above period.

4. Any unpaid fees due for services rendered to_______ [balance-sheet date].

Please send your reply directly to our auditors. A stamped, addressed envelope is enclosed for your 
convenience.

Very truly yours,

[Client's Authorized Signature]

Note to User:

A listing of the assets might not be requested if one had already been received by the client. In that case, 
the auditor might want the trustee to confirm the total market value per the listing.

8/95 13.031



13-48 COMPREHENSIVE ENGAGEMENT MANUAL

13.032 REPRESENTATION LETTER-AUDIT ENGAGEMENT
[Client's Letterhead]

[Date of Auditor's Report]

[To the Auditor]

In connection with your audit of the financial statements of_____________________________ [client's
name] for the year ended_______ [balance-sheet date], for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to
whether the financial statements present fairly the financial position, results of operations, and cash flows 
of_____________________________ [client's name] in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles, we confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, the following representations made to you 
during your audit:

1. We are responsible for the fair presentation in the financial statements of financial position, results 
of operations, and cash flows in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

2. We have made available to you:

a. All financial records and related data.

b. All minutes of the meeting of stockholders, directors, and committees of directors, or summaries 
of actions of recent meetings for which minutes have not yet been prepared.

c. Information relating to all statutes, laws or regulations that have a direct effect on our financial 
statements.

3. There have been no:

a. Irregularities involving management or employees who have significant roles in the internal 
control structure.

b. Irregularities involving other employees that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements.

c. Communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance with, or deficiencies in, 
financial reporting practices that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

4. We have no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or classification of assets 
and liabilities.

5. The following have been properly recorded or disclosed in the financial statements:

a. Related-party transactions and related amounts receivable or payable, including sales, purchases, 
loans, transfers, leasing arrangements, and guarantees.
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b. Capital stock repurchase options or agreements or capital stock reserved for options, warrants, 
conversions, or other requirements.

c. Arrangements with financial institutions involving compensating balances or other arrangements 
involving restrictions on cash balances and line of credit or similar arrangements.

d. Agreements to repurchase assets previously sold.

e. Security agreements under the Uniform Commercial Code.

f. Contractual obligations for purchases of assets.

g. Liens, encumbrances, or subordination of assets pledged as collateral in any way.

h. Subordination of any liabilities.

i. All lease or rental obligations under long-term leases.

6. There are no:

a. Violations or possible violations of laws or regulations whose effects should be considered for 
disclosure in the financial statements or as a basis for recording a loss contingency.

b. Other material liabilities or gain or loss contingencies that are required to be accrued or disclosed 
by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 5.

c. Estimates subject to material change in the near term or concentrations that make the entity 
vulnerable to risk of severe impact in the near term that are to be disclosed in accordance with 
SOP 94-6.

7. There are no unasserted claims or assessments that our lawyer has advised us are probable of assertion 
and must be disclosed in accordance with SFAS No. 5.

8. There are no material transactions that have not been properly recorded in the accounting records 
underlying the financial statements.

9. Provision, when material, has been made to:

a. Reduce excess or obsolete inventories to their estimated net realizable value.

b. Reduce all investments for permanent declines in value.

10. The company has satisfactory title to all owned assets.

11. Provision has been made for any material loss to be sustained in the fulfillment of, or from inability 
to fulfill, any Sales commitments.

12. Provision has been made for any material loss to be sustained as a result of purchase commitments 
for inventory quantities in excess of normal requirements or at prices in excess of the prevailing 
market prices.
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13. We have complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that would have a material effect on the 
financial statements in the event of noncompliance.

14. No events have occurred subsequent to the balance sheet date that would require adjustment to, or 
disclosure in, the financial statements.

[Chief Executive Officer]

[Chief Financial Officer]
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13.033 REPRESENTATION LETTER—REVIEW ENGAGEMENT
[Client's Letterhead]

[Date of Accountant's Report]

[To the Accountant] -------------------------------------------------

In connection with your review of the balance of__________________________ [client's name] as of
______ [financial statement date] and the related statements of income, retained earnings, and cash flows 
for the_______________ [period] then ended, for the purpose of expressing limited assurance that there
are no material modifications that should be made to the statements in order for them to be in conformity 
with generally accepted accounting principles (or other comprehensive basis of accounting), we confirm, 
to the best of our knowledge and belief, the following representations made to you during your review.

1. The financial statements referred to above present the financial position, results of operations, and 
cash flows of_____________________ [name of client] in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles. In that connection, we specifically confirm that—

a. The Company's accounting principles, and the practices and methods followed in applying them, 
are as disclosed in the financial statements.

b. There have been no changes during the year in the Company's accounting principles and 
practices.

c. We have no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or classification of 
assets and liabilities.

d. There are no material transactions that have not been properly reflected in the financial 
statements.

e. There are no material losses (such as from obsolete inventory or purchase or sales commitments) 
that have not been properly accrued or disclosed in the financial statements.

f. There are no violations or possible violations of laws or regulations whose effects should be 
considered for disclosure in the financial statements or as a basis for recording a loss contingency, 
and there are no other material liabilities or gain or loss contingencies that are required to be 
accrued or disclosed.

g. The Company has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances 
on such assets nor has any asset been pledged.

h. There are no related party transactions or related amounts receivable or payable that have not 
been properly disclosed in the financial statements.

i. We have complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that would have a material effect on 
the financial statements in the event of noncompliance.
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j. No events have occurred subsequent to the balance sheet date that would require adjustment to, 
or disclosure, in, the financial statements.

k. There are no estimates subject to material change in the near term or concentrations that make the 
entity vulnerable to risk of severe impact in the near term that are to be disclosed in accordance 
with SOP 94-6.

2. We have advised you of all actions taken at meetings of shareholders, board of directors, and 
committees of the board of directors (or other similar bodies) that may affect the financial statements.

3. We have responded fully to all inquiries made to us by you during your review.

[Owner or Chief Executive Officer]

[Chief Financial Officer]
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13.034 COMMUNICATION WITH AUDIT COMMITTEES

[Finn's Letterhead]
[Date]

AICPA Statement on Auditing Standards No. 61, Communication With Audit Committees, requires the 
auditor to communicate certain matters to those responsible for the oversight of the financial reporting 
process. The following comments regarding the scope and results of our audit of_____________ [name
of client] for the year ended__________ [date] will assist you in overseeing the financial reporting and
disclosure process for which management is responsible.

Scope of Audit

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit. The audit is to 
be conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free 
of material misstatement. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statements presentation.

Results of Audit

[This part of the letter would address the following:

1. Management’s choice of significant accounting policies and their application. This includes methods 
proposed for new transactions or events, significant unusual transactions, or controversial areas such 
as equity investments, off-balance sheet financing or revenue recognition.

2. Procedures used by management to determine accounting estimates and the data the auditor has 
considered to determine the reasonableness of the estimates.

3. Effects of audit adjustments that have or have not been recorded in the financial statements. Such 
adjustments, whether or not recorded, may have significant effects on current and future financial 
statements or on the company's internal control structure (i.e., a proposed adjustment may have 
resulted from errors detected during the audit that result from weaknesses in the internal control 
structure).

4. Other information presented by management that is included with the entity's audited financial 
statements. The auditor should discuss the nature of his responsibility for such information with the 
audit committee,  including procedures performed, if any, and the results.*

The letter should be addressed to the audit committee or other formally designated oversight group that 
is equivalent to the audit committee such as a finance committee or budget committee.
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5. Nature of and circumstances surrounding any disagreements with management about the application 
of GAAP, the determination of accounting estimates, or scope of the audit that could be significant to 
the entity's annual reporting.

6. Auditor's views about any accounting or auditing matters discussed by management with other auditors 
(opinion shopping).

7. Major discussions by management with the auditor about the initial or continued retention of the 
auditor.

8. Any serious difficulties encountered in conducting the audit.]

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, management and others 
in the organization (or specified regulatory agency or other specified third party).

Very truly yours,

[Engagement Partner]

Note to User:

SAS No. 61 (AU 380), is required to be followed for (1) entities that either have an audit committee or that 
have otherwise formally designated oversight of the financial reporting process to a group equivalent to 
an audit committee (such as a finance committee or budget committee) and (2) all Securities and Exchange 
Commission (SEC) engagements.

13.034 8/95



COMPREHENSIVE ENGAGEMENT MANUAL 13-55

13.035 RELIANCE LETTER
[Finn's Letterhead]

[Date]

The following is in response to your letter to our firm dated_______ [date].

We performed an audit of________ [client's name] balance-sheet dated_________ [date], and the related
statements of income, retained earnings, and cash flows for the year then ended. The financial statements 
were audited as of_________ [date] and the audit procedures performed were completed on_________
[report date]. No additional audit procedures were performed subsequent to_________[date].

The audit was conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. However, a properly designed and executed audit may not 
detect a material irregularity. For example, generally accepted auditing standards do not require that an 
auditor authenticate documents, nor is an auditor trained to do so. Also audit procedures that are effective 
for detecting a misstatement that is unintentional may not be effective for a misstatement that is intentional 
and is concealed through collusion between client personnel and third parties or among management or 
employees of the client.

We understand that you intend to rely on the report and associated statements in connection with (describe 
as precisely as possible the transaction in connection with which the third party intends to rely on the report 
and statements). It should be noted that the audit procedures performed in order to render an opinion on 
the financial statements of_________ [client's name] may not be adequate or appropriate for this purpose.
Because of the limitations inherent in the audit process we may not have detected all material 
misstatements. Accordingly, our audit was not intended for your benefit and should not be taken to 
supplant the inquiries and procedures that you should take to satisfy yourself as to__________ [client's
name] creditworthiness. We recommend that you perform your own due diligence investigation which 
should include but not be limited to the following steps (itemize). We emphasize that this list of procedures 
may not be all inclusive and that we cannot provide any assurance that the procedures we have mentioned 
will be sufficient for your purposes.

Very truly yours, 

[Engagement Partner]

Note to User:
In recent years, auditors have received an increasing number of requests from their clients for "reliance 
letters." Reliance letters affirm the independent auditor's knowledge that third parties, such as banks, will 
rely on the auditor's opinion on the client's financial statements. Third parties ask for these letters because 
in many states, in order to hold the auditor liable for negligence, the third party must prove that the auditor 
was a ware that a third party would rely on the audited financial statements.

8/95 13.035



13-56 COMPREHENSIVE ENGAGEMENT MANUAL

The authors of this manual recommend that CPAs try to avoid issuing reliance letters. However, this is 
not always practical, particularly when the client's interests will be adversely affected. With this in mind, 
the following are some guidelines the authors recommend for auditors who must provide a reliance letter:

1. Do not merely acknowledge a third party's intended reliance, but identify the various ways in which 
that reliance is qualified. This can be accomplished by asking the third party to provide a letter stating 
that it has performed other due diligence procedures, or by stating in the reliance letter that the auditor 
assumes that the third party has performed due diligence procedures.

2. Acknowledge the third party's intention to rely, not the actual reliance.

3. State in the letter that an audit is limited by the nature of the audit process and cannot be expected to 
detect all potential problems.

4. Indicate in the letter that the auditor's report and the client's financial statements are as of a specific 
date and that no updating procedures have been performed, that the audit procedures were directed 
towards the financial statements as a whole and may not be adequate for the third party's reliance.

5. State, as precisely as possible, the purpose of the third party's reliance. Avoid comments about the 
third party's intended after-the-fact general reliance.
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13.036 REPORT ON REPORTABLE CONDITIONS
[Firm's Letterhead]

[Date of Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements]

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the______________ [client's name]
for the year ended__________[financial statement date], we considered its internal control structure in
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial 
statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control structure. However, we noted the following 
matters involving the internal control structure and its operation that we consider to be reportable 
conditions under standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. 
Reportable conditions involve matters coming to our attention relating to significant deficiencies in the 
design or operation of the internal control structure that, in our judgment, could adversely affect the 
entity's ability to record, process, summarize, and report financial data consistent with the assertions of 
management in the financial statements.

Bank Reconciliations

Bank reconciliations have been prepared for the operating cash account, but they have not been in 
agreement with the general ledger, often by as much as_____________ . At_______ ' the general
ledger balance varied from the bank reconciliation by $_________ .

In prior years, the bank reconciliations did not reconcile exactly to the general ledger; however, the 
variances were not as significant as in 199X. To maintain effective internal controls over cash, it is critical 
that bank accounts be reconciled to the general ledger monthly with differences identified and resolved 
immediately. At the present time, an adjusting journal entry should be made to bring the general ledger 
balance into agreement with the reconciled balance.

Accounts Payable

A listing of accounts payable as of____________ could not be produced to support the general ledger
amount. We were able to reconcile accounts payable to the general ledger amount by reviewing computer­
generated accounts payable listings dated___________ , along with examining unpaid invoices at the time
of our field work.

As indicated in previous letters to the Board, accounts payable has been an ongoing problem due to the fact 
that the accounts payable listing is not reconciled to the general ledger monthly. Proper recording of 
accounts payable is a key to maintaining adequate financial statements. Whether computer-generated or 
manually prepared, a detailed accounts payable listing should be reconciled monthly to the general ledger 
balance. All reconciliations should be reviewed and approved by someone other than the preparer, with 
the reviewer being responsible for ensuring that all differences are resolved.

Property and Equipment

Documentation provided to support the changes in property and equipment was not in agreement with the 
changes in the general ledger balances, for some categories, by as much as_______ . Also, the computer­
generated list of property and equipment was not in agreement with the total property and equipment 
recorded in the general ledger; therefore, this listing was not a useful resource.
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The property and equipment computer listing should be reviewed, revised, and reconciled to the general 
ledger. Changes in property and equipment should be recorded timely and the detailed property and 
equipment listing should be reconciled to the general ledger balances monthly.

The procedures for recording fixed asset additions and deletions should be reviewed to determine their 
adequacy. Adjusting journal entries with regard to trade-ins, sales and other retirements of fixed assets 
should be reviewed by the Treasurer or someone other than the person preparing the entry. Examples of 
problems encountered include improper capitalization of assets when a like kind exchange or trade-in is 
involved and improper recording of gain or loss on sale of assets.

An annual or biannual physical inventory of equipment is an effective management tool to help maintain 
detail property and equipment records and strengthen controls of safeguarding equipment. The Board 
should consider making a physical inventory a standard procedure.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors, management, and 
others within the entity.

Very truly yours,

[Engagement Partner]
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13.037 REPORT ON REPORTABLE CONDITIONS THAT ALSO
IDENTIFIES A MATERIAL WEAKNESS

[Firm's Letterhead]

[Date of Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements]

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the______________ [client's name]
for the year ended___________________ [financial statement date], we considered its internal control
structure in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the 
financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control structure. However, we noted the 
following matters involving the internal control structure and its operation that we consider to be reportable 
conditions under standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. 
Reportable conditions involve matters coming to our attention relating to significant deficiencies in the 
design or operation of the internal control structure that, in our judgment, could adversely affect the 
entity's ability to record, process, summarize, and report financial data consistent with the assertions of 
management in the financial statements.

Accrued Vacation

Although accrued vacation has not been recorded on the financial statements, the amount of accrued 
vacation must be considered in determining the fair presentation of the financial statements. The year end 
analysis of accrued vacation had a balance significantly lower than the prior year's balance. The details 
of the analysis were traced to the "attendance control cards." We found (1) the number of days earned on 
the listing did not agree to that recorded in the cards, (2) individuals were reported in the cards with earned 
vacation but were not on the listing, and (3) some of the cards appeared to not have been maintained.

Detailed records of vacation days earned and used by employees should be timely and accurately 
maintained. At least annually, these days should be converted to dollar amounts. Management should 
review the conversion and consider reporting this liability on the financial statements for complete 
recognition of liabilities.

Discussions with the Office Manager revealed that not all employees are required to notify her when they 
use vacation days. All employees should be required to inform the Office Manager of all vacation days 
taken. Employees should also be asked to periodically review their vacation records with the Office 
Manager and to indicate their agreement by signing the records.

Bad Debts

During 199X, the Board approved the write-off of accounts receivable of about______ . The write-off
was charged to revenue rather than to bad debt expense.

Procedures for recording bad debt write-offs should be reviewed for adequacy. All adjusting entries should 
be reviewed by the Treasurer or a member of management other than the person preparing the journal 
entry.

A material weakness is a reportable condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the 
internal control structure elements does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that errors or 
irregularities in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
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occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions.

Our consideration of the internal control structure would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal 
control structure that might be reportable conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all 
reportable conditions that are also considered to be material weaknesses as defined above. However, we 
believe that the following reportable condition is a material weakness.

Blank Checks

Blank checks are maintained in an unlocked cabinet along with the check signing machine.

Blank checks and the check signing machine should be locked in separate locations so as to prevent the 
embezzlement of funds.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors, management, and 
others within the entity.

Very truly yours,

[Engagement Partner]
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[Date]

13.038 INSURANCE IN FORCE CONFIRMATION REQUEST 
[Client's Letterhead]

Our auditors,_____________ [name and address of auditors], are conducting an audit of our financial
statements. In that connection, please confirm the details of our insurance coverage in force at 
____________[balance-sheet date] as described below:

Policy number _________________ ________________

Insurance company _________________ ________________
Type of coverage _________________ ________________

Amount of coverage ------------------------- ------------------------

Co-insurance, if any ------------------------- ------------------------
Term of policy ------------------------- ------------------------
Gross premium _________________ ________________
Amount of unpaid premiums _________________ ________________
Loss payees, if other than us _________________ ________________
Claims pending at________ [date] _________________  ________________

Please compare this information with your records and inform our auditors, in the space below, if it is, or 
is not, in agreement with your records. After signing and dating your reply, please mail it directly to our 
auditors in the enclosed envelope.

Very truly yours,

[Client's Authorized Signature]

The above information agrees with our records at___________ [balance-sheet date] with the following
exceptions:

Signed: Date:________________________
[Name and Title]
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13.039 ILLUSTRATIVE LETTER TO ACTUARY
REQUESTING EMPLOYER’S BENEFIT COST INFORMATION 

[Client's Letterhead] 

[Date]

In connection with the audit of our financial statements for the period ending____________[fiscal year
end] by our independent auditors___________________________________________ [name, address],
please furnish them a copy of the most recent actuarial valuation report for 
_______________________________ [name of plan]. If a complete actuarial valuation was not prepared 
as of________   [date], please provide any reports or letters that summarize end-of-period amounts.
If the information requested below is included in the valuation report, you may refer to the location in your 
report rather than repeating such information.

A. Please provide a brief description of the following:

1. The participant group(s) (for example, employee, retiree and dependent group[s]) covered, and 
the types of benefits provided.

2. The provisions of the substantive plan at the beginning of the period used in the calculation of the 
net periodic postretirement benefit cost for the period.

3. Any changes between the provisions of the substantive plan at the beginning of the period used 
in the calculation of net periodic postretirement benefit costs and the substantive plan used in the 
calculation of the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation (APBO) at the disclosure date. 
Additionally, please specify the following:

a. The disclosure date (which cannot be more than three months prior to the end of the period).

b. How these changes were included in the net periodic postretirement benefit costs for the 
period.

4. The date and description of plan amendments adopted during the period and whether the 
amendment(s) were included in items 2. and 3. above.

5. Any participants, benefits or plan terms excluded from the calculations and the reasons for their 
exclusion.

6. The funding policy for the plan if other than pay-as-you-go.

7. Any significant liabilities other than for benefits.

8. The method and the amortization period, if any, used for amortizing:

a. Any transition asset or obligation.
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b. Unrecognized prior service cost.
c. Unrecognized net gain or loss.

9. If the plan is funded, provide:

a. The amounts and types of securities used to value plan assets.

b. Calculation of fair value of plan assets.

c. The date as of which fair value was calculated.

d. The method of determining the value of any contracts with insurance companies and 
participation provisions included in the plan assets.

10. The following information relating to the participants' demographic and compensation data used 
in calculating the APBO and net periodic postretirement benefit cost:

a. The source of the demographic data and the date as of which the data were collected.

b. The following information concerning the participants and their beneficiaries in the following 
(or a comparable) format. Please indicate any groups of participants excluded from the 
information.

Participants

Retirees and beneficiaries eligible for benefits 
Dependents of retirees eligible for benefits 
Active employees fully eligible for benefits 
Terminated employees fully eligible for benefits 
Active employees not fully eligible for benefits 
Other (identify)

c. Information for the following participants:

Number 
of persons

Compensation
(if applicable)

Participants' 
name or 
number

Age or 
birth 
date Salary

Date hired 
or year of 

initial eligibility

11. A summary of the per-capita claims costs used in the valuation and the basis for their 
development, including:

a. In employer-specific claims data were used in connection with the development of per-capita 
claims cost by age, a description of the data, its source and the period from which it was 
taken.

b. If an external data source was used in connection with the development of per-capita claims 
costs by age, describe the nature of the external data source and how it was used.

c. The extent to which external data sources were used to adjust the historical claims data.
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B. Please provide the following components of the net periodic postretirement benefit cost for the period 
(see A.2. above):

1. Service cost $_____________

2. Interest cost _____________

3. Actual return on plan assets _____________

4. Other components, net:

a. Net asset gain (loss) during the period deferred for
later recognition $_____________

b. Amortization of net loss (gain) from earlier periods _____________

c. Amortization of unrecognized prior service cost _____________

d. Amortization of the transition obligation _____________

e. Net total of other components (a+b+c+d) _____________

5. Net periodic postretirement benefit cost (1 +2-3 +4e) $.. . ........

C. Please provide the following information related to the APBO as of the disclosure date (see A.3. 
above):

Beginning of period
(transition date)*  End of period

1. Accumulated postretirement benefit obligation (APBO)

a. Retirees and beneficiaries eligible for benefits $------------------- $----------------- -

b. Dependents of retirees eligible for benefits -------------------- --------------------

c. Active employees fully eligible for benefits -------------------- --------------------

d. Terminated employees fully eligible for benefits -------------------- --------------------

e. Active employees, not fully eligible for benefits -------------------- --------------------

f. Other (identify) -------------------- --------------------

g. Total (sum of 1.a.-1.f.) -------------------- --------------------

This column should be included only in the initial year of application of FASB Statement No. 106.
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Beginning of period 
(transition date)*

*
This column should be included only in the initial year of application of FASB Statement No. 106.

End of period

2. Fair value of plan assets _____________ _____________

3. Funded status (l.g.-2.) _____________ ____________  

4. Unrecognized prior service cost _____________ _____________

5. Unrecognized net loss (gain) _____________ _____________

6. Unrecognized transition obligation (asset) _____________ _____________

7. Accrued (prepaid) postretirement benefit cost
(3 less items 4-6) $ ____ ... $

D. Please provide the following information regarding the assumptions used to compute the net periodic 
postretirement benefit cost and APBO. If a published standard table was used, provide its name.

ECONOMIC ASSUMPTIONS Net periodic cost APBO

1. General inflation (e.g., CPI)  %  %

2. Weighted-average discount rate  %  %

3. Weighted-average rate of compensation increase  %  %

4. Weighted-average expected long-term rate of
return on plan assets  %  %

5. Estimated income tax rate included in rate of
return _____ % ______%

6. Method used to determine market-related value
of assets _____ % _____ %

EMPLOYEE DEMOGRAPHIC DATA

7. Employee turnover rates by age Describe or attach table
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♦
8. Rates of retirement by age Describe or attach table

9. Rates of disability by age Describe or attach table

10. Rates of mortality by age Describe or attach table

11. Percentage of employees with dependents at 
retirement _____ % _____ -%

12. Spouse age difference _____ % _____ %

If participants in this plan are covered by a defined benefit pension plan for which expense is 
determined in accordance with FASB Statement No. 87, Employers’ Accounting for Pensions, please 
state whether the above assumptions are consistent with those used in calculations in determining those 
pension amounts. If not, please explain the difference and the reasons for the difference.

SPECIFIC ASSUMPTIONS FOR RETIREE
HEALTH CARE BENEFITS Net periodic cost APBO

13. Weighted-average administrative (e.g., claims
settlement, legal, accounting, plan administration, 
etc.) as a percentage of claims or other basis for 
assumption _____ %  %

14. Percentage expecting to elect coverage under the plan:

a. Future retirees _____ %  %

b. Their dependents _____ %  %

15. Health care cost trend rates (please provide rates for
each year to the ultimate rate) Describe or attach table

a. Please state whether these rates are applicable to gross eligible charges or to net incurred 
claims cost. If applied to net incurred claims, please state what adjustments were made and 
what rates are to be shown for disclosure.

b. The effect of a one-percentage-point increase in assumed health care cost trend rate on:

i. The aggregate of service and interest cost components of net periodic postretirement 
benefit costs.

ii. APBO.

16. Please state whether the above assumptions are consistent with the prior period, and, if not, 
explain the reason for the changes.
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17. Please describe any other significant assumptions used in the above measurement and the basis 
on which they were determined.

E. Please provide a description and the amounts of gains or losses from settlements, curtailments or 
termination benefits during the year, such as:

1. Purchase of insurance contracts where the risk of benefit payments is fully assumed by the 
insurance company.

2. Lump-sum cash payments to plan participants.

3. Other irrevocable actions that relieved the employer, plan sponsor or the plan of primary 
responsibility for a postretirement benefit obligation and eliminated significant risks related to the 
obligation and assets.

4. Any events that significantly reduced the expected years of future service of employees.

5. Any events that eliminated for a significant number of employees the accrual of defined benefits 
for some or all of their future service.

6. Any special or contractual termination benefits offered to employees.

F. Please describe any significant events (for example, plant closings) noted subsequent to the current 
year's measurement date, and the effects of those events, that could materially affect the amounts 
shown in B. or C.

G. If you have been notified of a decision by the plan sponsor to fully or partially terminate the plan, 
please describe the effect on the APBO and the net periodic postretirement benefit cost.

H. Was all of the information above determined in accordance with FASB Statement No. 106 to the best 
of your knowledge? If not, please describe any differences.

I. Describe the nature of your relationship, if any, with the plan or the plan sponsor that may impair or 
appear to impair the objectivity of your work.

J. Indicate your professional qualifications for performing actuarial valuations under FASB Statement 
No. 106.

Yours very truly,

[Client Official]

8/95 13.039





Standard W
orking 

Papers Package



CHAPTER 14

STANDARD WORKING PAPERS PACKAGE 

Table of Contents

Section Page

14.000 STANDARD WORKING PAPERS 14-3

14.100 Working Paper Indexing 14-4

14.101 Explanation of Standard Tickmarks 14-5

14.102 Correspondence Control 14-6

14.103 Working Trial Balance—Assets 14-7

14.104 Working Trial Balance—Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity 14-8

14.105 Working Trial Balance—Revenues, Costs and Expenses 14-9

14.106 Lead Schedule 14-10

14.107 Cash on Hand 14-11

14.108 Bank Reconciliation 14-12

14.109 Bank Transfers 14-13

14.110 Accounts Receivable Aged Trial Balance 14-14

14.111 Allowance For Doubtful Accounts 14-15

14.112 Accounts Receivable Confirmation Statistics 14-16

14.113 Notes Receivable 14-17

14.114 Reconciliation of Book and Physical Inventories 14-18

14.115 Physical Inventory Cutoff Data 14-19

8/95



CHAPTER 14

STANDARD WORKING PAPERS PACKAGE

Table of Contents (Continued)

Section Page

14.116 Raw Materials Pricing Test 14-20

14.117 Prepaid Insurance 14-21

14.118 Property, Plant and Equipment 14-22

14.119 Additions 14-23

14.120 Disposals 14-24

14.121 Investments in Securities 14-25

14.122 Notes Payable and Long-Term Debt 14-26

14.123 Summary of Carryovers 14-27

14.124 Stockholders’ Equity Analysis 14-28

14.125 Tests of Controls—Sales Transactions 14-29

14.126 Tests of Controls—Cash Disbursements and Purchases 14-30

14.127 Tests of Controls—Payroll 14-31

14.128 Pension Accounting Workpaper 14-32

14.129 Statement of Cash Flows Working Paper (Indirect Method) 14-33

14.130 FAS 109 Year-End Reconciliation 14-36

14.131 Deferred Tax Asset Valuation Allowance 14-37

14.132 Tax Expense Computation 14-38

14.133 Analysis of Income Taxes Payable 14-39

8/95



14-3

CHAPTER 14

STANDARD WORKING PAPERS PACKAGE

14.000 STANDARD WORKING PAPERS

14.001 This illustrative set of working papers has been developed to assist in the organization, planning 
and completion of engagements. They are not a substitute for common sense and professional judgment. 
They are presented as guides for your modification and use in audit and accounting services engagements.

14.002 These standard working papers are not all-inclusive. Other commonly prepared working papers 
include:

• Detailed trial balance

• Minutes of directors’ meetings

• Listings of accounts payable

• Schedules supporting various other balance sheet and earnings statement accounts

14.003 Copies of client-prepared schedules and documents should be used wherever feasible. If possible, 
clients should be instructed in advance to use these standard working papers when preparing schedules 
for our use. Any client schedules and documents not conforming in size should be taped on your 
standard size working papers to facilitate their filing and future use.
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14.100 Working Paper Indexing

ASSETS:

A Cash

B Accounts and notes receivable

C Inventories

D Prepaid expense

E Securities and investments

F Other assets

K Fixed assets and accumulated depreciation

0 Intercompany accounts

LIABILITIES:

AA Notes payable and long-term debt

BB Accounts payable

CC Accrued expenses and other current liabilities

DD Income Taxes

GG Commitments and contingencies

RR Other noncurrent liabilities

SS Equity

OPERATIONS:

TOC Tests of controls

AP Analytical procedures

10 Sales

20 Costs of sales

ILLUSTRATIVE INDEXING:

Lead sheet—fixed assets K

Summary of additions and deletions , K-l

Individual schedules of additions
and deletions K-1 K-2

1 2

Supporting documents for individual 
schedules K-1 K-2

1 2

30 Selling expenses

40 General and administrative expenses

50 Other income

60 Other expenses

70 Other
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EXPLANATION OF STANDARD TICKMARKS14.101

PREPARED BY
DATE  

MARK EXPLANATION 

F Footed

CF Crossfooted

G/L Traced to  general ledger 

C Confirmed

Examined  supporting  invoice

Calculation verified

T/B Traced to trial  balance

•

■
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14.102 CORRESPONDENCE CONTROL

PREPARED BY
DATE

Date Date Date Date
First Second Subsequent Confirmation

Addressee Request Request Requests Completed

Description

Bank confirmations
Cutoff statement
Account balances
Contingent liabilities
Credit lines
Compensating balances

Securities custodian confirmations

Notes receivable confirmations

Accounts Receivable confirmations

Consigned inventory confirmations

Warehoused inventory

Deposit receivable confirmations

Safe deposit box access confirmations

Insurance in force confirmations

Notes payable confirmations

Accounts payable confirmations

Customer deposit payable confirmations

Employee benefit plan confirmations  

Related party confirmations

Lawyer letters

Client representation letter

Other
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14.107 CASH ON HAND

PREPARED BY
DATE

WORKING
PAPER BALANCE OVER BALANCE
REFERENCE CASHIER LOCATION OF FUND PER ACCOUNT (SHORT) PER BOOKS
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BANK RECONCILIATION14.108

Balance per bank

Deposits in transit

Deduct:

Outstanding checks 

Other reconciling items (describe)

Balance per books before adjustment

Adjustments (identify and desribe):

Bank service charges

Bank charges for returned checks

PREPARED BY  
DATE
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ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS14.111

PREPARED BY
DATE

Balance at beginning of period

Add:
Provision for the period

Recovery of written off accounts

Subtotal

Deduct:

Accounts written off

Balance at end of period - unadjustec

Adjustments

Balance at end of period - adjusted
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14.112 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE CONFIRMATION STATISTICS

PREPARED BY
DATE

slumber Dollars
Amount % Amount %

Circularization:
Positive requests
Negative requests

Total circularized
No requests sent

Total accounts receivable at
Date of confirmation 100% 100%

Results (Replies received through 
No differences reported:
Positive replies:
Negative requests
Differences reported

and resolved:
Positive replies
Negative replies

No positive replies

Total confirmed
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14.114 RECONCILIATION OF BOOK AND PHYSICAL INVENTORIES

PREPARED BY
DATE

Raw Work in Finished Other/
Materials Process Goods supplies

Book inventory, unadjusted at date of physical
Adjustments to book inventory (describe):

Book inventory adjusted at date of physical

Physical inventory, unadjusted

Adjustments to physical inventory (describe):

Physical inventory, adjusted

Reconciliation of book and physical inventories:

Book inventory, adjusted, at date of physical

Adjustment to physical

Physical inventory
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14.115 PHYSICAL INVENTORY CUTOFF DATA

PREPARED BY
DATE

Last sales invoice number used
Last "return from customer" number used
Last shipping report number used
Last bill of lading number used
Last receiving report number used
Last "return to vendor" number used
Other cutoff information:
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14.117
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14.119 ADDITIONS

PREPARED BY
DATE

Estimated New or
Date Vendor Description Life Used Cost
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14.131 Deferred Tax Asset Valuation Allowance

Prepared By
Date

INSTRUCTIONS: Prepare this workpaper whenever there Is a gross deferred tax  
asset. If SCHEDULING of the reversal of the future deductions is required to
evaluate recoverability, substitute the year-by-year schedule for this workpaper 

Gross Deferred Tax Asset From FAS 109 year end
reconciliation workpaper $

Less: Income Taxes (Federal and State) Paid or Payable for Current and
Immediately Preceding Two Years. (Exclude State Taxes
if no carryback is permitted):

Tax Paid for 19 $
Tax Paid for 19 $
Tax Pald/Payable for 19 $

Total Paid $ (A)

Taxes Refundable accrued
at ,19 $

(Year End)
Net Prior Tax $( )

Deferred Tax Asset not recoverable through carryback
— If negative, show ZERO and provide no allowance $( )

Less: Gross Deferred Tax Liability from FAS 109
year end reconciliation workpaper $( )

Caution: Deferred Tax Liabilities and Assets of separate
jurisdiction (e.g., federal vs. state) should not be offset,
if material.

Deferred Tax Asset to be recovered from future taxable income other
than reversal of temporary differences
—if negative, show ZERO and provide no allowance $( ) (B)

Test of Profitability:
i. If a going concern modification would be applicable to this entity, provide

a valuation allowance equal to (B) above.

ii. Amount from (A) above
divided by 3 $ (C)

(B) divided by (C) $ (D)

Is (D) greater than 3? YES NO

Do the immediately preceding two years show cumulative
or zero GAAP earnings? YES NO

Is next year expected to have a GAAP loss or be break-even? YES NO

Are there unsettled circumstances that make it more than
likely that GAAP profits will be significantly below the average
profits of the last three years? YES NO

If all answers are NO, then no allowance is needed.

lii. If neither i. nor ii. are applicable, prepare a workpaper analyzing the deferred tax assets and 
documenting the judgements leading to a partial or full allowance equal to (B). 
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14.132

(2) If a change in tax rate is included, compute by multiplying the change in rate by the beginning of year, (FAS 109 year end 
reconciliation workpaper Column C) temporary difference and include in the expected to actual reconciliation.

Tax Expense Computation
Prepared By
Date

Reconciliation
Tax of Expected to

Provision Actual
TAX RETURN

1. Income (Loss) Before Income Taxes $ @ 34% $ Expected Federal Tax Provision
2. Change in temporary differences -

Net Schedule M-1 Items
from FAS 109 Reconciliation

WP Ref 3. Permanent Differences: (list) Permanent Differences:

$ @ 34%
$ © 34%
$ @ 34%
$ @ 34%
$ @ 34%
$ @ 34%

Total Permanent Differences

4. Taxable Income BEFORE STATE TAXES

5. State Income Tax ( %) (Use separate @66% State tax, net
worksheet, if necessary, for
computation of state income tax]

6. Taxable Income - FEDERAL

7. Federal Tax - Use Separate Worksheet,
if necessary Graduated rates

8. Additional accrual/Rounding Additional accrual/Rounding

9. Total Current Provision

DEFERRED TAX

10 Beginning of Year (FAS 109 Year End Reconciliation
times prior year rate PLUS Tax Credit
Carryover)

11 End of Year (FAS 109 Year End
Reonciliation Column H)

12 Gross Change

13 Less changes related to Equity Items
(FAS 109, par 36):

Prior Period Adjustments
Noncurrent Marketable Securities

14 Net Change (2) Rate changes

15 Valuation Allowance

End of Year
Change in valuation Allowance - Exclude (1) 
changes due to expiration or

Beginning of Year
carryforwards and credits, and (2) purchase 
accounting.

Change in Valuation Allowance

16 Total Deferred Provision
Actual Tax Provision - prepare a separate 
column or workpaper for continuing
operations if different than net income.

17 Total Provisions $

18 $

(1) Note: If DR on FAS 109 year end reconciliation workpaper show as income,
if CR on FAS 109 year end reconciliation workpaper show as a deduction.



COMPREHENSIVE ENGAGEMENT MANUAL 14-39

14.133
ANALYSIS OF INCOME TAXES PAYABLE

PREPARED BY
DATE

Federal State Additonal
Current Payable Current Payable Accrual (A) Deferred Taxes

DR CR DR CR DR CR DR CR

1. Beginning balance (per Prior Year adjusted TB)

2. Payment (Refunds) on 19 Tax Returns:
Federal
State

Subtotal
Total

3. 19 Tax Provisions - per books before audit
adjustment

4. 19 Estimates Pd: 1st qtr. Fed
1st qtr State
2nd qtr Fed
2nd qtr State
3rd qtr Fed
3rd qtr State
4th qtr Fed
4th qtr State

5. Other Items:

6. BALANCE per unadjusted trial balance

7. AJE (to reclass current/deferred per
FAS 109 Year end reconciliation, instruction 1

8. AJE (to adjust to Tax Comp @
tax expense computation workpaper)

9. Adjusted Balance
1 2 (B)

( )

10 Reconciliation of Current Payable

Federal State
Current Current
Payable Payable

Tax (Credit) per Current Year
Return or Accrual:

Estimates Paid:

Federal

State

Balance
(1) (2)  

(A) Entitles will not normally have a separate additional accrual account. However, for our workpaper purposes, separately schedule any additional accrual and track It from year to year. 
 

(B) Should be equal to the Total Provision on tax expense computation work paper.
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Responses ............................................................................................... 7.207
SAS No. 12............................................................................................... 7.205
Subsequent Events................................................................................. 12.302
Timing of Letter..................................................................................... 7.207

LIABILITIES.......................................................................................... 17.582

LIFE INSURANCE POLICIES CONFIRMATION............................. 13.011

LIFO INVENTORIES................................................ 17.302, 17.527-17.529

LINES OF CREDIT CONFIRMATION............................................... 13.016

LITIGATION (see LEGAL LETTERS)

LONG-TERM DEBT (see LIABILITIES)

LOSSES ON INVESTMENTS IN DEBT AND
EQUITY SECURITIES ........................................................ 17.512,17.706

LOTUS 1-2-3............................................................................................ 1.802

MANAGEMENT MEETING CHECKLIST ........................ 12.700,12.704

MANAGEMENT REPRESENTATIONS (see
REPRESENTATION LETTER)

MANAGEMENT'S REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS..................................................... 16.102

MATERIALITY
Audit Planning....................................................................................... 2.326
Computation Form............................................................................... 10.301
Overall Limit...............................................................................  2.326-2.332
Table ....................................................................................................... 2.329

MATERIALITY COMPUTATION FORM....................................... 10.301

MATERIAL WEAKNESSES (see REPORTABLE
CONDITIONS)

MINORITY INTERESTS.................................................................... 17.107

MISSTATEMENTS (see ERRORS, IRREGULARITIES,
AND ILLEGAL ACTS)

MODEL APPROACH
Sample Size Selection ............................................................... 3.528-3.535
Working Paper................................................................................... 10.505

MODEL APPROACH WORKING PAPER....................................... 10.505

MODIFICATIONS TO STANDARD AUDIT REPORT.................. 19.100

MODIFICATIONS TO STANDARD COMPILATION 
REPORT

Departures From GAAP....................................................... 20.306-20.309
Disclosures Omitted............................................................................ 20.304

Comparative Financial Statements............................................... 20.310
Statement of Cash Flows Omitted.................................................... 20.906

MODIFICATIONS TO STANDARD REVIEW REPORT
Departures From GAAP....................................................... 20.404-20.407
Statement of Cash Flows Omitted.................................................... 20.929

MONEY MARKET FUND CONFIRMATION.................................. 13.004

MORTGAGE DEBT
Confirmation Form ............................................................................ 13.014

MODIFICATIONS TO STANDARD AUDITOR'S REPORT.......... 19.102
Departures From GAAP.......................................................... 19.103,19.106
Inadequate Disclosure ....................................................................... 19.109
Unacceptable Principles .................................................................... 19.106
Errors, Irregularities, and Illegal Acts............................................. 19.110
Failure to Apply Pronouncement .................................................... 19.112
Modification Summary...................................................................... 19.103
Scope Limitations .............................................................................. 19.104

MORTGAGE DEBT CONFIRMATION............................................ 13.014

NONSTATISTICAL SAMPLING............................................... 3.506, 3.524

NONSTATISTIC AL SAMPLE SIZE SELECTION MATRIX - 
TESTS OF CONTROLS............................................................ 10.500

NOTES PAYABLE
Confirmation ...................................................................................... 13.013
Financial Statement Presentation .................................................... 17.572
Working Papers ................................................................................. 14.122

NOTES PAYABLE OR LONG-TERM DEBT
CONFIRMATION ......................................................................... 13.013

NOTES RECEIVABLE
Confirmation ...................................................................................... 13.007
Financial Statement Presentation ....................................... 17.516,17.518
Working Papers ................................................................................. 14.113

NOTES RECEIVABLE CONFIRMATION-
POSITIVE REQUEST.................................................................... 13.007

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.......................................... 18.112
Approach to Writing Notes............................................................... 16.200
Disclosure Requirements.................................................................... 16.207
Effective Writing Techniques............................................................ 16.201
Major Notes Categories .................................................................... 16.204
Outlining the Contents ....................................................................... 16.209
Reading the Completed Notes .......................................................... 16.211
Referencing......................................................................................... 16.214
Review by Engagement Executive and In-charge.......................... 16.212
Using Prior-Year or Illustrative Notes............................................ 16.210

OFFSETTING ASSETS AND LIABILITIES..................................... 17.513

8/95



I-10 COMPREHENSIVE ENGAGEMENT MANUAL
---------------------------------------------------------------   
OTHER AUDITORS (see WORK OF OTHER AUDITORS)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE BASES OF ACCOUNTING
Cash Basis..................................................................................... 4.703-4.707
Income Tax Basis .......................................................... 4.702, 4.705-4.707
Sample Reports........................................... 20.914-20.915, 20.937-20.938

OPERATING LEASES
Disclosure............................................................................................ 17.562
Financial Statement Presentation ........................................ 17.547-17.549

OTHER ACCOUNTANTS, LETTERS TO........................... 13.022,13.023

PEER AND QUALITY REVIEWS 6.209

PENSION ACCOUNTING (see PENSION PLANS)

PENSION PLAN ACTUARIAL INFORMATION............................. 13.030

PENSION PLAN ASSETS HELD BY TRUSTEE............................. 13.031

Quality Control Standards..................  1.702, 8.001, 8.302, 8.304, 12.101
References to Authoritative Literature................................................ 1.708
Statements on Auditing Standards (see p. 1-13)
Statements on Financial Accounting Standards (see p. 1-13)
Statements on Standards for Accounting and

Review Services (SSARS) Listing..................................... 4.800
Statements on Standards for Attestation Engagements....... 20.103

PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT........................... 17.542, 17.544
Working Paper for Additions................................................. 14.119
Working Paper for Disposals................................................. 14.120

PROPOSAL LETTER.............................................................. 13.027

PURCHASE ACCOUNTING.................................................... 17.112

QUALITY CONTROL STANDARDS.............  1.702,8.001,8.302,8.304,
12.101, 12.401

PENSION PLANS .................................................................................. 17.593
Audit Procedures.................................................................................... 5.400
Pension Accounting Working Paper .................................................. 14.128
Pension Costs............................................................................. 5.400, 17.594
Reliance on Actuary..................................................................... 5.403, 5.504
SFAS No. 87 ............................................................................. 5.401, 17.594
SFAS No. 88 .......................................................................................... 5.401
Tests of Balances.................................................................................... 5.402

RANDOM SELECTION WITH RANDOM TABLE FORM............. 10.501

RANDOM SELECTION WITH SYSTEMATIC
SAMPLE FORM ............................................................................. 10.507

RAW MATERIALS PRICING TEST WORK PAPER..................... 14.116

RECEIVABLES (see ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE)

PERFORMANCE APPRAISALS.......................................................... 8.400

PLANNING (see AUDIT PLANNING; 
SUPERVISION AND REVIEW)

PLANNING MATRIX 3.348-3.352

PLANNING MEMORANDUM .......................................................... 10.300

POOLING OF INTERESTS ACCOUNTING...........17.111, 17.113-17.119

POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS
Actuary's Confirmation Letter, Sample of..................................... 13.030
Audit Procedures.................................................................................... 5.504
Reliance on Actuary............................................................................... 5.504
SFAS No. 106 ............................................................................  5.501-5.503

POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
Accounting for....................................................................................... 5.600
SFAS No. 112 ....................................................................................... 5.601

POTENTIAL MISSTATEMENTS MATRIX..................................... 10.102

PREPAID INSURANCE....................................................................... 17.530

PRESCRIBED FORMS......................................................................... 20.805
Sample Compilation Report............................................................... 20.918

PRIOR-PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS
Accounting............................................................................... 17.717-17.718

PROFESSIONAL CONDUCT (see PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS)

PROFESSIONAL PRONOUNCEMENTS AND STANDARDS
AICPA Audit Guides..................... 3.204,3.501,15.204,17.303,20.103
Code of Professional Conduct (and Rules) ............................. 1.403-1.406
EITF Consensuses....................................................................... 1.504-1.506
GAAP Hierarchy.......................................................................... 1.500, 1.504
Generally Accepted Auditing Standards............................................. 1.600

RECENT AUTHORITATIVE PRONOUNCEMENTS (see NEW
AUTHORITATIVE PRONOUNCEMENTS)

REISSUANCE OF REPORT AS PREDECESSOR ............................. 19.510

REISSUANCE OF REPORT SUBSEQUENT TO
ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE.................................................................. 19.513

RELIANCE LETTER............................................................................ 13.035

RELIANCE MATRIX (TABLE)............................................................. 3.105

RELYING ON WORK OF A SPECIALIST ........................................ 19.502

REPORTS ON AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (see 
AUDITORS' REPORTS)

REPORTS ON COMPILED OR REVIEWED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS (see COMPILATION AND 
REVIEW REPORTS)

RELATED PARTY CONFIRMATION.....................................................13.020

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Confirmation ....................................................................................... 13.020
Disclosures ............................................................................. 17.203-17.205
Disclosure of Major Customer............................................. 17.206-17.207

REPORT ON REPORTABLE CONDITIONS................................... 13.036

REPORT ON REPORTABLE CONDITIONS THAT ALSO
IDENTIFIES A MATERIAL WEAKNESS ................................... 13.037

REPORT PREPARATION
Addressee ....................................... '................................................... 19.004
Letterhead............................................................................................. 19.004
Level of Service.................................................................................. 19.004
Report Dating....................................................................................... 19.004
Report Signing..................................................................................... 19.004
Salutation............................................................................................... 19.004
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REPORTABLE CONDITIONS
Communication to Audit Committee.................................................. 13.034

Sample Report .................................................................. 13.036, 13.037
Form ....................................................................................................... 10.801
Material Weaknesses............................................................................. 7.608

Sample Report .................................................................................. 13.037

REPORTING CHECKLIST (see FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND NOTES CHECKLIST)

REPORTING ON AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (see
AUDITORS' REPORTS)

REPORTING ON COMPILATION AND
REVIEW ENGAGEMENTS (see COMPILATION
AND REVIEW REPORTS)

REPRESENTATION LETTER—AUDIT ENGAGEMENT............. 13.032

AICPA Guide on Audit Sampling 
Approaches ..................................

3.501, 3.506, 3.515, 3.548
............................... 3.544

SAMPLE SIZE SELECTION AND EVALUATION FORM............. 10.506

SAMPLING DECISION WORKING PAPER .................................. 10.504

SCOPE LIMITATIONS
First-Year Audits ............................................................................... 19.104
Uncertainties ....................................................................................... 19.118

SECURITIES HELD BY BROKERS CONFIRMATION ................ 13.010

SEGMENTS OF A BUSINESS............................................................ 17.800

SFAS (see STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL 
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

REPRESENTATION LETTER ­
REVIEW ENGAGEMENT ............................................................. 13.033

REPRESENTATION LETTER TO OTHER
ACCOUNTANTS............................................................................. 13.023

REQUEST FOR BANK CUTOFF STATEMENT............................. 13.002

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY ............................................................ 17.600
Additional Paid-In Capital.................................................................. 17.604
Capital Stock....................................................................................... 17.603
Dividends ......................................................................................... 17.607
Retained Earnings............................................................................... 17.606
Statement of............................................................................ 18.106-18.108
Treasury Stock.................................................................................... 17.605

REPRESENTATION LETTERS ............................................. 5.700, 12.302
Date.......................................................................................................... 7.503
Content.................................................................................................... 7.502
Requirements.......................................................................................... 7.502
Requirement for Audit Engagements.................................................. 5.700
Requirement for Review Engagements............................................... 4.400
Sample Letter.......................................................................... 13.032, 13.033
SAS No. 19............................................................................................. 7.502

SICK LEAVE, ACCRUED EXPENSE (see
COMPENSATED ABSENCES)

SINGLE FINANCIAL STATEMENT ............................................... 19.501
Sample Reports............................. 19.901, 19.625-19.626, 20.912, 20.934

SSARS (see STATEMENTS ON STANDARDS FOR
ACCOUNTING AND REVIEW SERVICES)

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT COSTS .................................. 17.712

RESTATEMENT
Change in Accounting Principle........................................................ 19.113
Change in Reporting Entity............................................................... 17.310
Correction of an Error.......................................................... 17.717-17.718
Prior-Period.......................................................................................... 17.306

RETAINED EARNINGS, STATEMENT OF..................................... 18.106

RETIREMENT PLANS (see PENSION PLANS; 
POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS; POSTRETIREMENT
BENEFITS)

REVIEW ENGAGEMENT WORK PROGRAM................................ 10.904

REVIEW ENGAGEMENT ANALYTICAL
PROCEDURES CHECKLIST....................................................... 10.905

REVIEW REPORT, MODIFIED (see MODIFICATIONS
TO STANDARD REVIEW REPORT)

REVIEW REPORT, STANDARD........................................................ 20.926

RISK ASSESSMENT ............................................................................. 3.204

RISK OF POTENTIAL MISSTATEMENTS (see ERRORS, 
IRREGULARITIES, AND ILLEGAL ACTS)

RISK OF POTENTIAL MISSTATEMENTS
EVALUATION FORM.................................................................... 10.101

SAFE DEPOSIT ACCESS CONFIRMATION.................................. 13.012

SAMPLING
Acceptable Risk of Assessing Control

Risk Too Low.................................................................................... 3.518

STANDARD AUDIT REPORT .......................................................... 19.101

STANDARD COMPILATION REPORT .......................................... 20.902

STANDARD REVIEW REPORT....................................................... 20.926

STANDARDS (see PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS ..........................  17.900, 18.109-18.111
Compilation and Review Engagements............................................... 4.706
Statement Preparation............................................................................ 17.901
Working Paper...................................................................................... 16.108

STATEMENT OF EARNINGS ............................................. 17.700,18.104

STATEMENT OF RETAINED EARNINGS ........................ 18.106-18.108

STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDERS'
EQUITY ............................................................... 17.600, 18.106-18.108

STATEMENTS ON AUDITING STANDARDS
(SAS)................................................................................................... 1.600

SAS No. 1 (Various AU Sections) .............  7.207, 7.301, 12.301, 19.005
SAS No. 12 (AU Sec. 337)................................................................. 7.201
SAS No. 19 (AU Sec. 333)................................................................. 7.502
SAS No. 22 (AU Sec. 311).......................... 2.303, 3.310, 8.003, 12.102
SAS No. 31 (AU Sec. 326)....................................................... 2.303, 3.517
SAS No. 39 (AU Sec. 350)................ 2.303, 2.605, 3.411, 3.501, 5.004
SAS No. 41 (AU Sec. 339).......................................... 2.303, 6.201, 6.209
SAS No. 47 (AU Sec. 312).......................................... 2.303, 2.308, 7.401
SAS No. 48 (AU Sec. 311)....................................................... 2.303, 3.310
SAS No. 53 (AU Sec. 316)................ 2.303,2.308,2.309-2.313,2.607,

7.601, 7.614-7.617
SAS No. 54 (AU Sec. 317) . . . 2.303, 2.321-2.325, 2.607, 7.614-7.617
SAS No. 55 (AU Sec. 319)................ 2.303, 2.306, 3.202, 3.303, 3.406
SAS No. 56 (AU Sec. 329)....................................................... 2.303, 7.102
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STATEMENTS ON AUDITING STANDARDS (SAS) (cont.)
SAS No. 57 (AU Sec. 342).......................................................  2.303, 5.300
SAS No. 58 (AU Sec. 508).................................................. 19.101, 19.117
SAS No. 59 (AU Sec. 341)....................................................  2.303, 19.124
SAS No. 60 (AU Sec. 325)........................................... 7.601,7.607-7.611
SAS No. 61 (AU Sec. 380)........................................ 7.601, 7.618, 13.034
SAS No. 62 (AU Sec. 623)................................................................. 4.707
SAS No. 64 (AU Secs. 341, 508, 543)............................................ 19.124
SAS No. 67 (AU Sec. 330)..........................................  2.303, 5.004, 5.200
SAS No. 69 (AU Sec. 411)................................................................. 1.500
SAS No. 70 (AU Sec. 324)......................................................  2.303, 2.610
SAS No. 71 (AU Sec. 722)...................................  5.650-5.656
SAS No. 73 .......................................................................................... 19.502

Adjustments.................................................................................. 7.403-7.406
Documentation Form.......................................................................... 10.302
Materiality Limits.................................................................................. 7.401
Misstatements (see also ERRORS,

IRREGULARITIES, AND ILLEGAL ACTS)
From Prior-Year............................................................................... 7.404
Threshold for Posting............................................................. 7.405-7.406

Using the Summary..................................................................... 7.407-7.410

SUMMARY OF POSSIBLE JOURNAL ENTRIES FORM .............. 10.302

SUMMARY OF TIME SAVINGS FOR NEXT YEAR..................... 11.202

STATEMENTS ON FINANCIAL ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS (SFAS)

SFAS No. 5 ...............................................................................  7.202, 19.116
....................................................................................... 17.545 
.......................................................................... 17.717-17.718 
....................................................................................... 17.703 
....................................................................................... 17.712 
............................................................................  5.401,..17.594 
.......................................................................................... 5.401 
....................................................................................... 17.103 
............................................................................  4.706, 17.901

............................................................................. 5.501-5.503 

....................................................................... 17.514-17.515 

......................................................................... 17.578,.17.708 

............................................................................. 5.601-5.602 

........................................................................ 17.508-17.512

SFAS No. 13 
SFAS No. 16
SFAS No. 21
SFAS No. 86
SFAS No. 87
SFAS No. 88
SFAS No. 94
SFAS No. 95
SFAS No. 106
SFAS No. 107
SFAS No. 109 
SFAS No. 112 
SFAS No. 115

SUPERVISION AND REVIEW
Checklists, Supervision and Review ................................... 12.200-12.704
Control Form....................................................................................... 12.604
Engagement Performance Review Checklist................................... 12.411
Executive Review.................................................................................. 8.105
Financial Statement Control Form ................................................... 12.604
In-charge Review .................................................................................. 8.104
Partner Review............................................................................... 8.106-8.107
Procedures............................................................................................... 8.004
Quality Control Standards..............................  8.001, 12.101
SAS No. 22 ......................................................  8.003, 12.102
Subsequent Events................................................................................ 12.300
Supervision and Review Checklists..................................... 12.200-12.704
Tax Accrual/Provision Review Checklist........................... 12.200, 12.204
Technical Review ................................................................................ 12.500
Technical Review Checklist................................................................ 12.504
Working Papers Review........................................................................ 8.100

STATEMENTS ON STANDARDS FOR ACCOUNTING 
AND REVIEW SERVICES (SSARS)

Listing .................................................................................................... 4.800
Interpretations.......................................................................................... 4.717
SSARS No. 1 ................ 1.602,4.001-4.006,4.101-4.104,4.306,4.701,

4.714-4.715, 4.717, 6.202, 20.216
SSARS No. 3 ...............................................................................  4.708-4.713
SSARS No. 7 ............................................................................. 4.401,20.001

STATEMENTS ON STANDARDS FOR
ATTESTATION ENGAGEMENTS (SSAE)

SSAE No. 1.......................................................................................... 20.103

STATISTICAL SAMPLING.......................................................  3.529-3.536

SUPPLEMENTAL REPORTING REQUIREMENTS ...................... 19.400

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Audits.................................................................................................... 19.400
Compilations and Reviews................................................................... 20.801
Common Interest Realty Associations (CIRA)................... 19.403-19.404
Sample Reports..................................................................................... 19.624

SYSTEM A CLASSIFICATION..................................... 3.103-3.104, 3.307

SYSTEM B CLASSIFICATION..................................... 3.103-3.104,3.307

SYSTEM C CLASSIFICATION........................ 3.103-3.104, 3.112, 3.307

STOCK OPTION AND STOCK PURCHASE PLANS..................... 17.597
Illustrative Disclosures....................................................................... 17.597

TAX ACCRUAL/PROVISION REVIEW

SUBSEQUENT DISCOVERY OF FACTS EXISTING

CHECKLIST....................................................................... 12.200, 12.204

TAX-EXEMPT ENTITIES.................................................................. 17.709

AT REPORT DATE
Reissuance of Report.......................................................................... 19.513

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Authoritative Literature ..................................................................... 12.301
Documentation.................................................................................... 12.304
Pooling of Interest Accounting.......................................................... 17.115
Procedures............................................................................................ 12.302
Subsequent Events Review Program............................................... 12.304

TECHNICAL REVIEW CHECKLIST................................... 12.504, 16.404

TESTS OF BALANCES
All-Substantive Approach
Audit Program .............
Reduction of Tests..........
Sampling Decisions . . . 
Substantive Test...........

3.207, 3.403, 3.411
................... 10.700
..................... 3.403
........... 3.538-3.543
........... 3.205, 3.207

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS REVIEW PROGRAM ............................. 12.304
TESTS OF BALANCES AUDIT PROGRAM........................... 3.538, 10.700

SUBSTANTIVE TESTS (see also ANALYTICAL
PROCEDURES; TESTS OF BALANCES)............................. 3.204-3.212

SUCCESSOR AUDITORS AND ACCOUNTANTS
Evidence Accumulation ....................................................................... 6.209
First-Year Engagements....................................................................... 2.501
Reporting Based on Other Auditor's Work....................................... 2.515

SUMMARY OF POSSIBLE JOURNAL ENTRIES............................. 7.400

TESTS OF CONTROLS (see INTERNAL 
CONTROLS STRUCTURE)

TESTS OF CONTROLS - CASH DISBURSEMENTS
AND PURCHASES.......................................................................... 10.400

TESTS OF CONTROLS—PAYROLL..................................... 14.400

TESTS OF CONTROLS PROGRAM ................................................ 10.400
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TESTS OF CONTROLS -SALES TRANSACTIONS..................... 14.125

TICKMARKS, EXPLANATION OF.................................................. 14.101

TIME ACCUMULATION SHEET..................................................... 11.201

TIME CONTROL DOCUMENTS
Budgets........................................................................................11.001, 11.100
Summary of Time Savings for Next Year........................................ 11.202
Time Accumulation Sheet.................................................................. 11.201
Time Summary Form.......................................................................... 11.200
Using the Time Control Documents ............................................... 11.100

TIME SUMMARY FORM.................................................................. 11.200

TRANSACTION CYCLES
Relationship to Major Audit Areas ....................................................... 3.306

TRIAL BALANCE PREPARATION
Lead Sheet Method ............................................................................. 16.101
Working Trial Balance Method ....................................................... 16.101

UNCERTAINTIES........... ............................................................2.115-2.121
Accountant's Reports ....  .......................................................... 20.700
Altman Z Score Form ................................................ 2.122-2.126,10.304
Auditor's Reports ............................................................................... 19.600
Compilations and Reviews.................................................................. 20.700
Departures From GAAP..................................................................... 19.612
Going-Concern Uncertainties................................................ 19.612, 20.700
Resolution of the Uncertainty............................................................. 19.612
Scope Limitations ............................................................................... 19.613

UNCONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES ................................ 17.104-17.106

UNIFORM COMMERCIAL CODE
Confirmation Request.......................................................................... 13.021

UPDATED REPORT DIFFERS FROM PREVIOUS 
REPORT..................................................................................... 19.507

VACATION TIME (see COMPENSATED ABSENCES)

WORDPERFECT DISKETTE.....................................................................1.801

WORK OF OTHER AUDITORS....................................................... 19.200
No Reference to Other Auditor ....................................................... 19.204
Procedures............................................................................................ 19.205
Reference to Other Auditor............................................................... 19.203
Sample Report ..................................................................................... 19.614

WORKING PAPERS (see also DOCUMENTATION; 
EVIDENCE ACCUMULATION)

Accounts Receivable Aged Trial Balance........................................ 14.110
Accounts Receivable Confirmation Statistics.................................... 14.112.
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts............................. .'.................... 14.111
Bank Reconciliation............................................................................ 14.108
Bank Transfers.................................................................................... 14.109
Cash on Hand....................................................................................... 14.107
Client-Prepared Working Papers............................................................ 6.004
Correspondence Control.................................................................... 14.102
Deficiencies............................................................................................ 6.209

WORKING PAPERS (see also DOCUMENTATION;
EVIDENCE ACCUMULATION) (cont.)

Investments in Securities.................................................................................
14.121 Lead Schedule.......................................................................... 14.106
Notes Payable and Long-Term Debt............................................... 14.122
Notes Receivable.................................................................................... 14.113
Pension Accounting............................................................................ 14.128
Physical Inventory Cutoff Data............................................................ 14.115
Prepaid Insurance ............................................................................... 14.117
Preparation of......................................................................................... 6.300
Property, Plant, and Equipment.......................................................... 14.118

Additions............................................................................................ 14.119
Disposals............................................................................................ 14.120

Raw Materials Pricing Test.................................................................. 14.116
Reconciliation of Book and Physical Inventories ........................... 14.114
Review of.............................................................................................. 8.100
Rules and Techniques for Working Paper Preparation..................... 6.300
Shareholders' Equity Analysis............................................................ 14.124
Summary of Carryovers.................................................................... 14.123
Statement of Cash Flows....................................................................... 14.129
Tests of Controls — Cash Disbursements and Purchases................ 14.126
Tests of Controls — Payroll.................................................................. 14.127
Tests of Controls — Sales Transactions............................................... 14.125
Working Paper Schedules..................................................................... 6.005
Working Trial Balance —Assets.......................................................... 14.103
Working Trial Balance —Liabilities and

Shareholders' Equity ....................................................................... 14.104
Working Trial Balance —Revenues, Costs,

and Expenses .................................................................................... 14.105

WORKING TRIAL BALANCE — ASSETS.......................................... 14.103

WORKING TRIAL BALANCE-LIABILITIES
AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY.................................................. 14.104

WORKING TRIAL BALANCE - REVENUES,
COSTS, AND EXPENSES................................................................. 14.105
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AICPA
American 
Institute of 
Certified 
Public 
Accountants

1211 Avenue of the Americas
New York, NY 10036-8775

(212) 596-6200
Fax (212) 596-6213

Dear Subscriber:

Enclosed is your 1995 edition of the Integrated Practice System Comprehensive Engagement Manual. 
This Manual is designed as a complete tool for performing and reporting on audits, reviews, and 
compilations.

To ensure that the quality control materials in this Manual are reliable practice aids that comply with 
professional standards and to help minimize the cost of your peer review, this Manual has been peer 
reviewed by the CPA firm, Baird, Kurtz & Dobson. Included in the Manual is a copy of their 
unqualified opinion.

This Manual has also been reviewed by a special task force of the AICPA Private Companies Practice 
Section. The task force members use this Manual in their firms’ audit, review, and compilation 
engagements and, as a result, provide recommendations for enhancements from the perspective of the 
local and regional firm.

Also included with this Manual is a diskette that includes all the letters and sample auditor’s and 
accountant’s reports from the Manual in WordPerfect format. Attached is a detailed listing of the items 
included on the diskette. These items are identified in the Manual by the following icon:

And, the programs and checklists included in this Manual are available for use with the AICPA’s Audit 
Program Generator (APG). APG is a software tool that allows you to easily customize audit programs 
and checklists to best suit your engagements. For more information about APG, call the AICPA Software 
Connection at (800) 226-5800. If you currently use APG and would like to order the library volume for 
this Manual, call the AICPA Order Department at (800) 862-4272 and ask for product 016994. The 
programs and checklists included in the APG library volume are identified in your Manual by the 
following icon:

 
We will continue to monitor and enhance the Comprehensive Engagement Manual and, in an effort to 
give you the latest guidance, we will ship the next update to you automatically.

As we have mentioned in our advertising, if you are not fully satisfied with your manual, just return it 
to us within 60 days for a full refund.

Sincerely,  

Susan L. Menelaides, CPA
Director, Technical Information Division 008869





Comprehensive Engagement Manual 
Letters and Reports for WordPerfect Diskette 

and Forms in Lotus Files

Section Description File Name
Correspondence
13.002 Request for Bank Cutoff Statement BANCUTOF
13.004 Money Market Fund Confirmation MMFDCNF
13.005 Accounts Receivable Confirmation — 

Positive
ARPSCNF

13.006 Accounts Receivable Confirmation — 
Negative

ARNGCNF
13.007 Notes Receivable Confirmation-Positive NRPSCNF
13.008 Inventories in Warehouse Confirmation 

Client Provided Listing
INVWCCNF

13.009 Inventories in Warehouse Confirmation — 
Client Did Not Provide Listing

. INVWCNF
13.010 Securities Held By Brokers Confirmation SECCNF
13.012 Safe Deposit Access Confirmation SDACNF
13.013 Notes Payable/Long-Term Debt Confir­

mation
NPLTDCNF

13.014 Mortgage Debt Confirmation MTGCNF
13.015 Accounts Payable Confirmation APCNF
13.016 Lines of Credit Confirmation LOCCNF
13.017 Contingent Liabilities Confirmation CNTLBCNF
13.018 Registrar — Capital Stock Confirmation CPSTKCNF
13.019 Transfer Agent — Capital Stock Con­

firmation
CPSTACNF

13.020 Related-Party Confirmation RPCNF
13.022 Letter ot Other Accountants Upon Whose 

Work We Plan to Rely
OACLTR

13.023 Representation Letter to Other 
Accountants

REPOACT
13.024 Engagement Letter — Audits ENGLETA
13.025 Engagement Letter — Compilations ENGLETC
13.026 Engagement Letter — Reviews ENGLETR
13.027 Proposal Letter PROPLTR
13.028 Inquiry Letter to Legal Counsel — 

General
LAWINQ

13.029 Inquiry Letter to Legal Counsel — 
Management Did Not Provide Pending 
Litigation Details

LAWINQLT

13.030 Pension Plan Actuarial Information PENSPLAC
13.031 Pension Plan Assets Held by Trustee PENSPLAS
13.032 Representation Letter — Audits REPLETA
13.033 Representation Letter — Reviews REPLETR
13.034 Communication With Audit Committees AUDCOMCM
13.035 Reliance Letter RELLTR
13.036 Reportable Conditions Report REPCOND
13.037 Reportable Conditions Report — 

Identifies Material Weaknesses
REPCNDMW

1



Section Description File Name
13.038 Insurance In-Force Confirmation INSCONF
13.039 Letter to Actuary Requesting Employer's ACTLETT

Benefit Cost Information
Auditor's Reports
19.601 Standard Auditor's Report — Single AUDRPSP
19.602

Period
Standard Auditor's Report — Comparative AUDRPCP

19.603
Periods
Qualified Opinion — Scope Limitation QRPSSLT

19.604 Disclaimer of Opinion — Scope DSCRPSLT
19.605

Limitation
First-Year Audit — Beginning Balances SLTBB

19.606
Not Audited
Qualified Opinion — GAAP Departure GAAPDQRP

19.607 Adverse Opinion — GAAP Departure GAAPDARP
19.608 Qualified Opinion — Inadequate DISCLQRP
19.609

Disclosure
Explanatory Paragraph — Change of GAAP EXPGAAP

19.610 Qualified Opinion — Change to DGAAPQRP
19.611

Unacceptable Principle
Qualified Opinion — Client Does Not JPQRP

19.612
19.613

Provide Justification for Change in 
Principle
Uncertainty
Going-Concern Uncertainty Paragraph GNGCNCR

19.614 Report Indicating Divided DRARP
19.615

Responsibility Among Auditors 
Predecessor Declines Reissue — Prior PREPPUNQ

19.616
Period Unqualified
Predecessor Declines Reissue — Prior PREPPQ

19.617
Period Qualified
Predecessor Declines Reissue — Prior PREPPQR

19.618
Period Unqualified; Restatement
Subsequently Made
Current Period Audited — Prior Period AUDREV

19.619
Reviewed
Current Year Audited — Prior Period AUDCOMP

19.620
Compiled
Supplementary Information — Unqualified SUPPUNQ

19.621
Report
Supplementary Information — Disclaimer SUPPDISC

19.622
on Part  
Supplementary Information — Disclaimer SUPPDISQ

19.623
on All
Report on Basic Financial Statements QUALSUPP

19.624
Qualified; Supplementary Information 
Qualified
CIRA Financial Statements — Required CIRAOM

19.625
Supplementary Information Omitted 
Balance Sheet Only Presented BSRPT
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Section Description File Name
19.626
19.627
19.628
19.629

Balance Sheet Only Report — Disclaimer 
on Other Statements
Lack of Independence (Public Companies) 
Emphasis of a Matter
Restatement of Prior Period to Conform 
to GAAP

BSRPTDIS
NOIND 
EMPMATT 
PPREST

Compilation and Review Reports
20.902 Standard Compilation Report COMPRPT
20.903 Compilation Report — Disclosures 

Omitted
. COMPNODS

20.904 Compilation Report — GAAP Departure 
Effect Determined

COMPGAAP
20.905 Compilation Report — GAAP Departure 

Effect Not Determined
COMPGAPN

20.906 Compilation Report — Statement of Cash 
Flows Omitted

COMPNOCF
20.907 Compilation Report — Changed Reference 

to Prior Period GAAP Departure
COMPPPGP

20.908 Comparative Compilation Report — 
Disclosures Omitted

COMPCOM
20.909 Compilation Current Period — Review 

Prior Period
COMPREV

20.910 Compilation Current Period — Audit 
Prior Period

COMPAUD
20.911 Compilation Report — Prior Period 

Compiled by Other Accountants
COMPPPOA

20.912 Compilation Report — Balance Sheet Only COMPBS
20.913 Compilation Report — Supplementary 

Information Included
COMPSUPP

20.914 Compilation Report — Income Tax Basis COMPIT
20.915 Compilation Report — Cash Basis COMPCASH
20.916 Compilation Report on Elements, 

Accounts, or Items of a Financial 
Statement

COMPELEM

20.917 Compilation Report — Special Purpose — 
Acquisition Agreement

COMPACQ
20.918 Compilation Report — Prescribed Form COMPPRSC
20.926 Standard Review Report REVRPT
20.927 Review Report — GAAP Departure Effect 

Determined
REVGAAP

20.928 Review Report — GAAP Departure Effect 
Not Determined

REVNGAAP
20.929 Review Report — Statement of Cash Flows 

Omitted
REVNOCF

20.930 Review Report — Changed Reference to 
Prior Period GAAP Departure

REVPPGAP
20.931 Review Current Period — Audit Prior 

Period
REVAUD

20.932 Review Current Period — Prior Period 
Compiled

REVCOMP
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Section Description File Name
' 20.933 Review Report — Prior Period Reviewed REVREV

by Other Accountants
20.934
20.935

Review Report — Balance Sheet Only REVBS
Review Report — Supplementary REVSUPP
Information Reviewed

20.936 Review Report — Supplementary REVNSUPP
Information Not Reviewed

20.937
20.938
20.939

Review Report — Income Tax Basis REVIT
Review Report — Cash Basis REVCASH
Review Report — Special Purpose — REVACQ
Acquisition Agreement

Lotus Files
10.302 Summary of Possible Journal Entries CEMSJE1.WK3

Form
10.302 Summary of Possible Journal Entries CEMSJE1.FM3

Form (WYSIWYG Print File)
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